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1.

INTRODUCTION

The 2017/18 AIDC Annual Report complies with the Public Finance Management
Act (PFMA), giving effect to the legislative framework for the regulation of finances
in the national and provincial governments.

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED THAT THIS ANNUAL REPORT:
•

Takes into account all the relevant policies, legislation and other mandates 		
for which the AIDC is responsible; and

•

Accurately reflects performance against the strategic outcome-oriented 		
goals and objectives that the AIDC committed to achieve in the 2017/18 period.

2.

ANNUAL REPORTING PERIOD

The reporting cycle of the AIDC is annual, ending 31 March, as prescribed by the
National Treasury. Interim quarterly reports are developed and submitted to the
Eastern Cape Development Corporation as per the provisions of the PFMA. This
Annual Report records the organisational and financial performance for the period
1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018.

3.

SCOPE OF THE REPORT

The report incorporates financial and performance information based on the
approved 2017/18 Annual Performance Plan (APP). The Annual Report provides
for Performance Information, Governance Reports and incorporates financial
statements prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS).
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HOOSAIN MAHOMED
Chief Executive Officer | AIDCEC

WELILE WEZA MOSS
Chairman | AIDCEC

TARGET AUDIENCE

The report is targeted at an array of stakeholders, including, but not limited to the
automotive sector, local, provincial and National government agencies that have an
interest in the corporate affairs of the AIDC. The Annual report will be published in
hard copy and published electronically on the website of the organisation
for retrieval.
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ABBREVIATIONS
& ACRONYMS

GENERAL

INFORMATION
REGISTERED NAME

AIDC DEVELOPMENT CENTRE EASTERN CAPE (SOC) Ltd

COMPANY REGISTRATION
NUMBER

2003/018741/30

VAT NUMBER

4430210171

merSETA NUMBER

17-QA/ACC/1350/17

PHYSICAL ADDRESS

POSTAL ADDRESS

Broll House,
1st Floor
73 Second Avenue
Newton Park
Port Elizabeth
PO Box 63835
Greenacres
6057
Port Elizabeth

AIDC EC

AIDC Development Centre Eastern Cape (SOC) Ltd

ASCCI

Automotive Supply Chain Competitiveness Initiative

BBBEE

Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment

BCM

Buffalo City Municipality

BDA

Business Diagnostic Assessment

CP

Cleaner Production

DEDEAT

Eastern Cape Department of Economic Development, Environmental Affairs and Tourism

DHET

Departmental Higher Education and Training

dti

Department of Trade and Industry

ECDC

Eastern Cape Development Corporation

ED

Enterprise Development

GDP

Gross Domestic Product

ISO

International Standards Organisation

KPA

Key Performance Area

KPI

Key Performance Indicators

MOU

Memorandum of Understanding

NAACAM

National Association of Automotive Component and Allied Manufacturers

TELEPHONE NUMBER

041 393 2100

EMAIL ADDRESS

info@aidcec.co.za

NDP

National Development Plan

WEBSITE ADDRESS

www.aidcec.co.za

OEE

Overall Equipment Effectiveness

OEM

Original Equipment Manufacturer

PFMA

Public Finance Management Act

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

Moore Stephens WK Incorporated
Chartered Accountants (SA)
Registration Auditor
401 Cape Road
Cotswold
Port Elizabeth
6045

QMS

Quality Management System

SAAM

South African Automotive Masterplan

TPM

Total Productive Maintenance

VDA

German Association of the Automotive Industry

WCM

World Class Manufacturing

WELL

Wellness

BANKERS

ABSA Bank Limited
Investec Limited

COMPANY SECRETARY

Yogavelli Naidoo
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Where the Automotive Production and Development Programme (APDP) is intended to
promote production and investment in the local automotive industry, AIDC Eastern Cape
carries a unique mandate to develop and support the automotive sector, by ensuring that
the deepening value chain and global competitiveness of the suppliers is supported for
sustainable local value chain.
To achieve this, it requires government and industry to work together and AIDC Eastern Cape
plays that role as they are non-bias and non-member affiliates, but remain neutral. ECDC has
set Annual Performance Plans (APP) that AIDC has set out to achieve for 2017/18 financial
year which are reviewed and reported against on quarterly basis in the Board meetings,
which are held four times annually. Whilst AIDC Eastern Cape draws its funding from ECDC
for its operations, it is humbling to note that AIDC Eastern Cape has leveraged its funding at
2.38 times during the year under review, with an effort in reducing reliance on government
funding.
AIDC Eastern Cape governance has been strengthened and is well aligned with the PUBLIC
FINANCE MANAGEMENT ACT (PFMA) as well as internal and external audit support functions.
We are pleased to note that AIDC over the years has proven to be rigid in compliance protocol
and once again achieved an unqualified audit. We look forward to the year ahead with greater
optimism as AIDC Eastern Cape continues to expand its influence and realise further benefits
for the industry and economy of the Eastern Cape as a whole.
As the Shareholder, we are particularly excited to be part of a new era as AIDC Eastern
Cape embarks on its incredible journey. We are highly confident that the team will continue
to deliver on its mandate under the direction and leadership of a very passionate Board of
Directors. To the AIDC Eastern Cape team, continue to shine through all your wonderful
results and be part of a change and dynamic era ahead of you.
I would like to extend my greatest appreciation to the Chief Executive Officer and the Board
of Directors of the AIDC Eastern Cape for their support and catalyst to the industry over the
past year. I am highly confident that the AIDC Eastern Cape team will continue to deliver on its
mandate under the direction and leadership of a very passionate Board of Directors. I believe
that the new business strategy of the AIDC Eastern Cape, is set towards a great direction for
the industry and is well prepared to continue to scale up its activities and contribute value to
the industry, government and stakeholders in the year ahead.

Ndzondelelo Dlulane
CEO | ECDC

FOREWORD
As I look back on the 2017/18 financial year, there are many good reflections that are
worthy to share about the automotive industry. Eastern Cape is the hub of the Automotive
Industry of Southern Africa and is comprised of four of the seven major vehicle assemblers
in the country. Eastern Cape hosts 70% of the OEMs that are based in South Africa and
over 42% of the automotive suppliers. The industry contributes approximately 6.9% to South
Africa’s Gross Domestic Product (GDP). Despite the fact that we host 70% of the OEMs,
we still remain a small producer by global standards, only contributing 0.68% of global
automotive manufacturing.
The province is the leader in terms of automotive industry and offers two Special Economic
Zones – COEGA and East London IDZs. This makes the province an indispensable shore for
exports to other markets and the best location for OEMs.
AIDC Eastern Cape, as a subsidiary of the Eastern Cape Development Corporation (ECDC),
plays a vital role to ensure sustainable local value chain, transformation and global
competitiveness in the automotive industry. The AIDC Eastern Cape becomes a very
important role player in supporting this strategic sector in the provincial government.
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FUNDING
The AIDC is funded partly by the Eastern Cape Development Corporation (ECDC), as well as
through the revenue it generates by the project management and other services it offers
on a commercial basis, to industry and government agencies. As a schedule 3D entity, the
company prides itself with an unqualified audit for the year under review (2017/18), and
commends the team for the high governance compliance and protocol.
GRATITUDE
The Board expresses its gratitude to the CEO, Mr. Hoosain Mahomed and his ably led team.
I thank the other members of the board. Together we will continue to provide oversight and
leadership to the AIDC team to deliver on its socio-economic development mandate in the
Eastern Cape. The board is also grateful for the continued support from the ECDC as the
AIDC EC shareholder, the provincial Department of Economic Development, Environmental
Affairs and Tourism (DEDEAT), National Treasury, AIDC Gauteng Province, Buffalo City Metro,
Nelson Mandela Bay Metro, Chambers of Business in the province, and all its important
stakeholders and clients who believe in the vision and values of the organization. I expect the
AIDC’s contribution to become increasingly strategic and impactful as we continue to deliver
on our mandate.
STRATEGIC RELATIONSHIPS
The AIDC has a proud history of supporting the broader automotive manufacturing industry,
and we made a significant contribution in 2017–18. We provided support to incubators
of various manufacturing-related organisations in Eastern Cape. This included, but was not
limited to, Buffalo City Metro (BCM) Automotive Aftermarket Incubator in Mdantsane, and
a paint factory in Uitenhage. This year we celebrate 15 years since the establishment of
AIDC, as well as the launch of our new strategy as an organization which, we believe, will
change the landscape of the industry in the Eastern Cape. Interaction with industry leaders
provided us with a great opportunity to realise international standards of industry 4.0 and
will provide an opportunity to educate our clients about the industry 4.0 which speaks to the
South African Automotive Masterplan (SAAM) 2035 and the Eastern Cape Vision 2030
Provincial Development Plan.

WELILE WEZA MOSS

THE YEAR AHEAD
The Board looks forward to the 2018/19 financial year as it presents new opportunities
for the AIDC. The organisation will continue to implement the AIDC Strategy for the next
three years, aligned to SAAM 2035. To this end, the Board has approved and finalised
the AIDC strategy that is aimed at shaping and transforming the industry. The Board will
continue to support the transformation, deepening value supply chain and promote global
competitiveness that will allow the organisation to maximise the return on investment in the
Automotive Industry.

Board Chairman | AIDCEC

STATEMENT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS/APPRECIATION
On behalf of the AIDC Board and Executive Management, I express our sincere appreciation
to the Honourable MEC of DEDEAT, Mr. Oscar Mabuyane, and the ECDC CEO, Mr. Ndzondelelo
Dlulane, for their unwavering leadership, support, and willingness to engage with the AIDC
Board. I sincerely acknowledge the AIDC Staff and specifically the executive management
for their unwavering commitment to the organisation and their meaningful and proactive
engagement with the board. I also thank my fellow board members for their conscientious
attention to board matters and for bringing their diverse expertise to drive the new strategy
of the organisation.

INTRODUCTION
It is my pleasure to present the annual report of the Automotive Industrial Development
Centre Eastern Cape (AIDC) SOC Ltd for the 2017/18 financial year. Following a period
of change of management in the board structure, I would like to acknowledge and convey
thanks and gratitude to my predecessor, Mr. Dino Petrarolo, and recognise his contribution
to AIDC EC’s significant achievements over his time as chairman.
HIGH-LEVEL OVERVIEW OF THE AIDC EASTERN CAPE’S (AIDC EC) STRATEGY AND
PERFORMANCE IN THE SECTOR
The results of the 2017/18 financial year confirm that the organisation has played a key role
in both empowering and adding to the economy of the Eastern Cape, as it has strengthened its
relationships with stakeholders and further aligned its services with the requirements of the
manufacturing sector where the AIDC’s interventions are keenly focused. With the support
of the new Board, the entity has embarked on a new strategy. There is a focus on core
business, reviewing the business model, ensuring relevance to industry and sustainability.
Through the implementation of this strategy the organisation has the capability to make a
far wider contribution to job creation, enterprise development and manufacturing growth.
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CONCLUSION
Based on the performance and outcomes of the year in review, the AIDC EC is encouraged and looks forward to a
new year of opportunities to contribute to a new era ahead of us. I would furthermore like to thank the outgoing
board, whose term of office expired at the end of April 2017, for their great work in ensuring that they leave
an excellent platform for the new board to build on. All that remains for me to do is to extend my gratitude to
the staff and management at the AIDC for their commitment and drive to ensure that the AIDC delivers on its
mandate even through the time of transition.
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compliance is assured by meetings between the management and our external auditors
to address and assess any matters raised in the Financial Report Findings. Despite an
economic outlook that presented a myriad of challenges, the entity has remained resilient
and, in my opinion, a powerful resource or partner to industry. The AIDC EC met 77% of
its projected revenue generation. This represents a shortfall of R6.6 million. Commercial
projects accounted for most of the revenue (68% for 2017/18), as a result of a focus on
seeking alternative sources of funding. The Supplier Development Programmes, Enterprise
Development and Wellness, and Skills Development and Training programmes underachieved by 27%.
CAPACITY CONSTRAINTS AND CHALLENGES
Historically, the AIDC EC did not have a business plan as required by National Treasury
Regulations. The absence of a business plan resulted in a lack of institutional and performance
direction. The current (2017/18) strategic plan, annual performance and operational plans
of the organisation are out of date. Repeated reorganisation and repositioning of the AIDC
EC since inception has resulted in lack of corporate identity and clarity as to its role. The
development of a business plan is a first step to compiling PFMA-required corporate and
annual plans.
PROPOSED ACTIVITIES
There are four service offerings which were identified as revolutionary programs that will
drive the new strategy and greatly strengthen efforts to ensure proper alignment to vision
2035 of the South African Automotive Sector as well as Provincial Vision 2030.

HOOSAIN MAHOMED
CEO | AIDCEC

The first is the establishment of an incubator to develop manufacturers for the automotive
and other manufacturing sectors in the Eastern Cape. This will help new entrants to break into
the component supplier sector, or to establish manufacturing operations in non-automotive
sectors. The second is the establishment of a Centre of Excellence, which will provide the
research, advocacy, and communication required to ensure the Eastern Cape automotive
sector continues to grow, and that the province is recognised as the African automotive hub.
This will include the identification of the training needed to support new suppliers. The third is
the establishment of working relationship with NAACAM (National Association of Automotive
Component and Allied Manufacturers). This will include the signing of a Memorandum of
Understanding (MoU) to co-operate in the transformation, localisation and development of
suppliers. The fourth is the direct service offering to suppliers and external stakeholders,
e.g. BBBEE level verification and transformation, employment equity consulting, enterprise
development at the automotive centre of excellence, and the facilitation of direct and / or
majority black shareholding acquisition in Tier suppliers.
The AIDC EC will deliver these services through structured engagement, the local and
international automotive sector, as well as with industry in general.

OVERVIEW
The AIDC EC has been operational since 2003, and has developed a great track record over
the past fifteen (15) years. We have built on that this financial year and positioned the entity
for further growth through the significant services it offers to the automotive and wider
manufacturing sectors, which account for a large portion of the region’s GDP and sustainable
job creation. 2017/18 has proved to be a challenging year for the industry. The AIDC EC’s
performance against the 2017/18 APP was 71% achievement of targets, compared to
83% in the previous financial year. Despite the challenges, the AIDC EC made meaningful
contributions towards the sustainability of the local automotive industry and the realisation
of provincial priorities in the Eastern Cape. These contributions have been in the areas of
supplier development, supply chain management, skills development, job creation, enterprise
development, strategic infrastructure support, SMME development, BBBEE transformation,
industry-wide process improvements and improved health and safety. A SME Entrepreneur
Project has seen the establishment of nine business entities with a sustained employment of
seventy-one people in the Eastern Cape.
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
For the past five years the AIDC has been consistent in attaining an unqualified report. Our

14

ECONOMIC VIABILITY
Government is the primary funder of the AIDC EC. Mindful of the need to invest public funds
responsibly, the AIDC EC recognises the need to consolidate resources, realise economies of
scale and attract private sector funding. The funding model for the AIDC-Eastern Cape will be
guided by the following revenue streams:
a) Own generated revenue; and
b) Additional funding generated through collaborative effort in partnership with other
government and non-government entities (such as donors and the private sector).
The AIDC EC’s objective is to mature from dependency on government funding to generating
its own revenue. Direct fiscus / grant funding is to be reduced to 30% in line with the
Provincial Government’s 2013 review target.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
My sincere thanks and appreciation go to the ECDC and the board members for their
continued guidance and support. I also thank my executive team, management, and staff for
their ongoing professionalism, commitment and hard work.
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STATEMENT OF
RESPONSIBILITY AND
CONFIRMATION OF
THE ACCURACY OF THE
ANNUAL REPORT
The board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure the integrity of the
report. It has accordingly applied its mind to the report and in the opinion
of the board, it addresses material issues and represents fairly the
performance of the AIDC. The report has been prepared in keeping with
best practice, pursuant to the recommendations of the King IV Report on
Corporate Governance (“King IV”).

ABOUT US
VISION
The AIDC’s vision is to be industry and government’s institutional mechanism
focusing on effective project delivery in support of the Industrial Policy and
other strategic initiatives within the advanced manufacturing sector.

MISSION
•

To grow the South African automotive industry’s global competitiveness

•

To support the government’s automotive-related objectives

•

To contribute to the government and industry’s goals of continuous 		
growth and sustainable job creation

•

To support the ECDC’s macro plan

WELILE WEZA MOSS

Board Chairman | AIDCEC

SHAREHOLDER - EASTERN CAPE
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
The ECDC holds 100% of the shares in AIDC EC. ECDC’s primary objectives are
to plan, finance, co-ordinate and facilitate economic development priorities for
the people of the Eastern Cape.
In order to contribute to the government and industry’s goals of continuous
growth and sustainable job creation, the entity has aligned its objectives to that
of its shareholder. The shareholder is updated on the entity’s performance on a
quality basisThe AIDC is 100% wholly owned by the ECDC.
ECDC’s primary goals and objectives are to promote sustainable socio-economic development in the Eastern Cape through focused:
- Provision of innovative enterprise development financial services
- Leveraging of resources, strategic alliances, investment and partnerships.
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AUTOMOTIVE SECTOR

THE CHANGING

IN PERSPECTIVE

SUPPLY CHAIN

MARKET SHARE REPRESENTATION 2017-18
OTHER 12%

NATIONAL AUTO SUPPLIER FOOTPRINT IN SA
TOYOTA 23%

MAZDA 3%
KIA 3%

WC

ISUZU 3%

7%

BMW 3%
KZN

21%

VW/AUDI 16%

RENAULT 4%

GP

30%

HYUNDAI 6%
EC

MERC 5%
FORD MOTOR
COMPANY 13%
NISSAN 9%

42%

0%
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10%

15%
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25%

30%

35%

40%

Eastern Cape = 42%
of NAACAM
DIRECTORY

45%

Source: NAAMSA Report March 2018

EASTERN CAPE GDP

CONTRIBUTION BY SECTOR
25,00%

• 120 tier 1
• 75% multinationals i.e. Faurecia,
Johnson Control, Bosch, Bchr

• Over 200 tier 2 + 3
• Mostly Local

• Major Destinations, EU, Africa,
USA, Brazil, Japan, South Korea,
Indian and China

23,1%

19,6%

20,00%

15,00%

Global, regional and local changes in the automotive industry are affecting not
only the OEMs and car retailers, but also the supply chain partnerships.

20,3%

The working relationships between OEMs and suppliers have been transformed by a number of
factors, including increased model diversity and shorter product life cycles, modularisation and
assembly strategies, the implementation of new technologies, electro-mobility development and high
capital intensity levels1. In order to stay competitive there is increasing pressure on suppliers to
evolve and innovate. According to the German Association of the Automotive Industry (VDA) the role
of suppliers is noticeably increasing, particularly in the production of drive trains, internal combustion
engines (ICEs) and aggregates, bodywork and exteriors2. The VDA forecasts that this visible extension
of supplier activity areas will take place through to 2025.

13,7%

10,00%
7,6%

5,00%

8,6%

3,9%
0,3%

0,00%
GDP

1,2%

1,6%

MINING

ELECTRICITY

AGRICULTURE

CONSTRUCTION

COMMUNITY
SERVICE

TRANSPORT

MANUFACTURING

TRADE

FINANCE

GOVERNMENT

0,30%

1,20%

1,60%

3,90%

3,90%

8,60%

13,70%

19,60%

20,30%

23,10%

The South African government through the dti continues to place great emphasis on the development of the manufacturing sector for a number of salient reasons.There are very few, if any cases, anywhere in economic history where a
country has achieved sustained and sustainable economic development which has not been led by manufacturing. This
applies to the early industrialisers (UK, Europe and the US, followed by Japan) to the ‘late’ industrialisers (South Korea,
Taiwan and the PRC and the newly emerging Asian Tigers – Vietnam, Thailand and India).The manufacturing sector
has the highest economic multipliers because of its value-addition, linkages to the upstream production sectors of the
economy (mining and agriculture), and the downstream services sectors. Manufacturing sector contributes directly to
GDP, employment, exports and human capital development. Developed country practices confirm that manufacturing
is a critical component of their economic policy, and supports the need to view the economy as an eco-system, not
disparate sectors.
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The Eastern Cape is home to 42% of the NAACAM Directory of suppliers and has the biggest
influence on the manufacturing sector of the region. Whilst South Africa is an insignificant player
within the global context, the industry is the largest employer in the Eastern Cape, and of critical
importance to prevent total de-industrialisation of the province.

1. GTAI, The Automotive Industry in Germany, 2016-2017
2. Ibid
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PRODUCTION, SALES AND

EMPLOYMENT LEVELS IN THE

EMPLOYEE STATISTICS

AUTO INDUSTRY

TABLE 01: SOUTH AFRICA AUTOMOBILE PRODUCTION, 2010 - 2017

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

CARS 295, 394

312, 256 274, 873 265, 257 277, 491 341, 025 335, 539 321, 358

COMMERCIAL
176, 655
VEHICLES

220, 280 264, 551 280, 656 288, 592 274, 633 263, 465 268, 593

TOTAL 472, 049
% CHANGE

26.2%

532,
545

539, 424

545,
913

566,
083

615,
658

599,
004

589, 951

12.8%

1.3%

1.2%

3.7%

8.8%

-2.7%

-1.51%

Source: OICA, 2016
Over the period 2009 – 2011 the industry significantly increased production volumes, but has since
plateaued, with a slight decline in overall production over the last two years. In terms of contribution
to global production, South Africa is a far more significant producer of light commercial vehicles than
passenger vehicles. In 2015, the country ranked 26th for its contribution to passenger vehicles and
15th in the ranking for commercial vehicle production 3.

TABLE 02: SOUTH AFRICA AUTOMOBILE NEW VEHICLE SALES, 2010 - 2017

2010
PASSENGER
CARS

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

337,130

396, 292 440, 002 450, 561 439, 264 412, 670 362, 289 369, 599

COMMERCIAL
155, 777
VEHICLES

175, 949 183, 919 200, 184 205, 240 205, 079 186, 117 186, 117

TOTAL 492, 901 572, 241 623, 921 650, 745 644, 504 617, 749 547, 406 555, 716
% CHANGE

19.86%

13.8%

8.2%

4.1%

-0.9%

-4.3%

-12.8%

1.4%

EMPLOYMENT
Despite the continued incentives of the APDP, employment has not reached the levels they were at
in 2008. According to NAAMSA, OEM employment grew by 866 employees from the introduction of
the APDP (beginning of 2013) until 2015, NAACAM reports the employment levels of auto component suppliers increasing by 12 100 employees for the same period 6.
Between 2008 – 2015 the sector contributed an average share in South African employment of
3.3%. OEM employment constitutes roughly 30 000 jobs, while auto component supplies constitutes about 80 000. The remaining jobs are created in the maintenance, repair and retail sectors.
NAAMSA reported 29 808 employees on the payroll of vehicle manufacturers for the last quarter
of 2017 7.

Source: OICA, 2016
The year 2016 recorded a third successive year on year decline for new vehicle sales. This is due
to above-inflation price increases, underperforming GDP growth and increased strain on household
budgets 4. However this trend was reversed in 2017, and in March 2018, a record number of 49
233 units was sold, marking the highest total for the local industry to date, and a 1.1% increase on
sales compared to March 2017 5. This increased demand is a good sign for the local industry, and
it is expected that passenger vehicle sales will continue to rise by 1-2% over the next two years, while
commercial vehicle sales are expected to experience slightly higher rates of growth.
3. B&M Analysts, Phase 1 report: An analysis of the South African automotive industry status quo, 2016
4. Lamphrecht, D, Automotive Export Manual, 2017
5. http://www.wheels24.co.za/News/SA_vehicle_sales/good-news-for-sa-car-sales-highest-monthly-total-yet-in-2018-naamsa-20180403
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6. B&M Analysts, Phase 1 report: An analysis of the South African automotive industry status quo, 2016
7. NAAMSA, Quarterly Business Review, Q4 2017
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01

04STRUCTURE
ORGANISATIONAL

STATEMENT OF
RESPONSIBILITY FOR
PERFORMANCE
INFORMATION FOR THE
YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2018

The AIDC’s most appropriate structure is structured according to the size of the organisation. Flat
structure is best suited currently due to our current job roles. However we need to ensure that
each manager’s span of control does not become too wide, so that they cannot manage their direct
reports effectively.

BOD

CEO

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal controls
designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of performance information.
The performance information fairly reflects the actual achievements against planned objectives, indicators
and targets as per the approved Annual Performance Plan (2017/18) of the AIDC EC for the financial
year ended 31 March 2018.
The external auditors have examined AIDC EC’s performance information for the year ended 31 March
2018 and their report is presented on pages 74 to 76. The Executive Authority approved the performance
information of the Entity as set out from page 26 to 28.

OPERATIONS

SUPPLIER
DEVELOPMENT

SKILLS
DEVELOPMENT
TRAINING

BUSINESS
SUPPORT

ENTERPRISE
DEVELOPMENT

HOOSAIN MAHOMED

Chief Executive Officer | AIDCEC

02 PREDETERMINED
OBJECTIVES
AUDITOR`S REPORT:

The external auditors have examined AIDC’s performance information for the year
ended 31 March 2018 and their report is presented on Pages 74 to 76.

03 LEGISLATIVE CHANGES
KEY POLICY DEVELOPMENTS AND

There were no significant legislative changes during the year under review.
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FINANCE &
PROCUREMENT

SUPPLIER
CHAIN
DEVELOPMENT

HR

WELLNESS IN THE
WORK PLACEMENT

05 OUTCOME-ORIENTED
GOALS
The shareholder`s priorities and the AIDC`s previous realities guided the
development of the 2017/18 goals.
During the year under review, three key objectives of the AIDC remained.
These are:
•
The reduction of financial dependency on government funding.
•
Operational excellence through continuous improvement 		
practices for the creation of value to industry.
•
More stringent alignment of outputs to provincial government
objectives.
These accompanied the already entrenched emphasis of sound corporate
governance and legislative compliance.

STRATEGIC GOAL 1
FOR 2017/18:

STRATEGIC

STRATEGIC
GOAL 01

Optimise all resources to maximise
investment returns and attain sustainabilty

GOAL
STATEMENT

To optimise resources to maximise investment
and attain sustainability within the
Automotive Industry Development

PROGRESS ON
THE ACHIEVEMENT
OF THE
STRATEGIC GOAL

•
•
•

THE AIDC’S STRATEGIC GOALS FOR THE PERIOD UNDER REVIEW ARE
SHOWN IN THE FIGURE BELOW:

The AIDC received an unqualified audit opinion for the 2017/18
financial year, which is a result of an enhanced internal control
environment
Grant funding was leveraged in excess of the expected target
Full implementation of efficient organisational resources and
systems resulted in 11 of 14 APP targets for the
2017/18 being met

Strategic Outcome-Oriented Goals
STRATEGIC GOAL 2:
Stimulate Economic
Activity

Increase automotive
supplier company
improvements

Sustain current jobs
in industry

S

Leverage of grant
funding received

Provide on the job
training

Increase community
wellness reach

Increase industry
contribution towards
programmes delivered

Increase number of
companies reached
through delivered
programmes
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STIMULATE ECONOMIC ACTIVITY

To stimulate economic activity within the
automotive sector in the Eastern Cape which
will result in jobs created and retained

GOAL
STATEMENT

PROGRESS ON
THE ACHIEVEMENT
OF THE
STRATEGIC GOAL

•
•
•
•
•

ME
TCO

Ensure full
implementation of
efficient organisational
resources and
systems

OU

OU

TCO
M

ES

Financial governance
and management

STRATEGIC GOAL 2
FOR 2017/18:

STRATEGIC GOAL 1:
Optimise all resources
to maximise investment
returns and attain
sustainabilty

STRATEGIC
GOAL 02

Targets on automotive manufacturing company improvements 		
were met for the 2017/18 year
Targets for on the job and critical were met for the 2017/18 year
Targets on number of jobs created and retained was met for the year
under review
The targeted increase of revenue through contribution from industry
was not achieved as envisioned
The accreditation as a training provider through MerSETA is
expected to assist with the income generation in coming
years coupled with the new strategic projects envisaged for
the organisation

PERFORMANCE
06 KEY
INDICATORS
PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY

During the 2017/18 financial year we achieved 71% (10 out of 14) of KPIs. One KPI was within 10%
variance of target; and 27% of total KPIs was not achieved. Two of the three KPIs relate to special projects
for which funding could not be secured during the year under review. Applications have been made for
continuation of these special projects into the new financial year. The KPI target of industry contribution
is due to companies internalising many of the processes to bolster their scorecards. A report presented
to the Board of Directors emphasised that, if the AIDC is to realise its new strategic vision, it is imperative
that there is industry buy-in and relevance to the automotive industry going forward.
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HIGHLIGHTS

2017/2018

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS - 2017-18
STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVE 1

1. Optimise all
resources to
maximise
investment
returns
and attain
sustainability

KEY
KPI ID PERFORMANCE
AREA

KEY
PERFORMANCE
INDICATOR

ANNUAL
TARGET

ANNUAL
ACTUAL

REASON FOR VARIANCE

Financial
Governance
and Management

Unqualified
Audit

Audit
Opinion

Unqualified
Audit

Uqualified Audit Achieved

1.2

Grant Funding
Leveraging

Number of
times grant
funds leveraged (X)

1,65

2.38

Special project funding and additional
cluster management funding exceeded
the budgeted amounts.

1.3

Ensure full
implementation Embedded culture
of efficient
of the Performance
organisational
Management
resources and
System
systems

100%

100%

Achieved

Average OEE %
Improvement within
companies

5,00%

6,54%

Achieved

Enterprise development programme concluded with the establishment 		
of 9 Business entities in the Mdantsani region creating 71 sustainable jobs.
The entrepreneurial programme was visited by the Minister Rob Davies 		
and MEC Oscar Mabuyane – during its economic development summit,
		
recognising the project as being successful and speaks to SME Development 		
to alleviate unemployment.

% Energy Cost
Savings

5,00%

7,64%

Achieved

•

Number of
Jobs sustained

66

114

Achieved

600

765

Achieved

The Graduate development programme ended its 3 year cycle in which
65 engineers were placed into industry (automotive). 40% of the graduates 		
are women and find the introduction into the automotive industry,
easier after completing the year progamme on Industrial and
manufacturing excellence.

•
969

Target not fully met due to some of
AIDC training programmes not
accredited

7 projects were supported on the ASCCI (Automotive supply chain 			
competitiveness initiative) in the drive to achieve efficiencies against 			
benchmarks and competitiveness, measuring Manufacturing Value Add.

•

Year on Year Improvement of 6.54% OEE facilitated through the AIDC Global 		
Competitive programs, supports our suppliers to achieve world class 			
standards. These are further supported by the yearly Kaizan awards, where 		
the Eastern Cape supplier scooped 3rd place in the national event.

•

Financial acumen and compliance to the PFMA has resulted in an			
unqualified audit opinion for 5 consecutive years.

•

New board appointed to the AIDC with shareholder mandate to re-engineer 		
the role of the AIDC as a provincial state organ.

2,1

2,2

Company
Improvements

Jobs
Sustained

Training Number of people
Awareness/on job received on job
training
training/awareness
2.3
Critical
Training

Number of
people trained

2.4

Community
Wellness
Reach

Number of
people reached
through wellness
interventions

2.5

Industry
Contribution

2.6

Client
Footprint

Number of
Companies reached

36

41

Achieved

3.1

Jobs
Created

Number of Jobs
created

97

70

Project over-run by initial timelines employment contracts received were
not counted for this quarter

2. Stimulate
economic
activity

3.3

3.4

LEGENDS:

FINANCIAL YEAR

1.1

STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVE 2

3. Special
projects

INDICATOR

1067

1000

1124

Rand value of
industry contribution 5 460 197 4 010 787
leveraged

Rand value
SMME Economic turnover
of SMME 3 540 000 5 898 996
Stimulus
businesses
Secure funding for Number of Funders
new Incubation
Secured
Hub
ACHIEVED

2

WITHIN 10% VARIANCE
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0

•
•

Achieved

Less participation from industry on
some of the service offerings resulted
in the external revenue target
not being met

Organisation achieved 71 % of its Annual performance plans (10 out of 14 		
KPI’s) and has operated within its budget allocation.

Achieved

Intent from Shareholder-application
for funding from JF for 8th
call in progress
NOT ACHIEVED
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7.1.2 TOTAL PRODUCTIVE MAINTENANCE (TPM):
The supplier base in the Eastern Cape is under continuous pressure to optimise its operations
in line with global standards and best practices. Local content targets are driven by a number of
factors and it is essential for suppliers to ensure readiness to capture local content opportunities
from the OEMs in South Africa.

07 ON INDUSTRY
OUR IMPACT

The promotion of competitiveness improvements through optimisation of the use of factor production
inputs, have led to excellent results for participating automotive component suppliers. These results
include productivity improvements, with substantial savings for the period under review.

It has been proven across many global organisations, that a good business excellence model that
is supported by management at the highest levels and driven through the shop floor, leads to
results that boost supplier’s competitiveness.

THE AIDC SUPPORTED A TOTAL OF 41 COMPANIES DURING THE YEAR, AND THE TYPES OF
INTERVENTION ARE DETAILED BELOW:

SUPPLIERS SUPPORTED DURING THE
FINANCIAL YEAR 2017/18
TIER 1
18

TIER 2+
3

SMME
20

Total Productive Maintenance is fast becoming a global standard amongst firms. OEMs are
becoming increasingly reliant on local suppliers to provide cost advantages to support local
content targets. In order to reach these targets, production systems are often implemented in a
one size fits all approach, that has results that do not meet expectation for a number of reasons.
These reasons include a lack of management knowledge on the concepts, as well as the
implementation approach.

The opportunity of increasing exports also presents itself through the application of respected
business best practice systems, such as Total Productive Maintenance. During the 2017/18
year, the AIDC supported 11 companies on TPM with an OEE improvement recorded at 6.54% for
the year. This has increased the industry index to 74.3% against a world class benchmark of 85%.

TOTAL COMPANIES
SUPPORTED - 41

INDUSTRY ACTIVITY

11 COMPANIES

11

TPM

CP

2

QMS

1

WCM

1

6.54% OEE (overall equipment effectiveness)
Improvement
Industry index up to 74% against World Class
level of 85%

6

WELL

20

BDA
0

5

10

15

20

NUMBER OF COMPANIES

7.1 SUPPLIER DEVELOPMENT
7.1.1 BUSINESS DIAGNOSTIC ASSESSMENTS (BDA):
The AIDC supported 20 small and medium manufacturing entities in the Eastern Cape through
a full business diagnostic assessment and related recommendations. These business diagnostic
assessments included an assessment of their management practices, finance, human resources,
purchasing as well as engineering, operations management, manufacturing technology and
maintenance management. The implementation of recommendations from the assessments will
assist these companies with business sustainability and growth.

Through the Supplier Development projects 15 companies were supported with an estimated
R2.8m on cost savings through shop floor improvements, whilst sustaining 114 Jobs in
areas of TPM and CP

During the 2017/18 year two of our TPM assisted Eastern Cape suppliers participated in the
annual KAIZEN Seminar in the following categories.
•
Engineering and manager category
•
Operator and supervisory category
One of our longest supported TPM clients, SJM Flex SA, was awarded the 3rd place in the National
Engineering and Manager category.

SJM Flex SA embraced the TPM programme due to its methodologies
of operator involvement, value adding and empowerment. SJM Flex SA
looks forward to the horizontal deployment throughout the entire plant
with consultation from the AIDC.

CRAIG EHLERS–PLANT MANAGER
OF SJM FLEX SA
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7.1.4 SIX SIGMA
The AIDC applies international level, best practices into its programmes, through a combination
of highly skilled engineers for the execution of Six Sigma and Lean Six Sigma manufacturing
methodologies within these programmes.
Lean Six Sigma was identified as a key competency to improve quality control and breakthrough
process improvement. The AIDC Six Sigma programme meets the Lean Six Sigma Body of
Knowledge requirement, which is an internationally accepted standard. The objective of Six Sigma
is to produce at low costs, to have extremely low levels of failures, to be competitive in global
markets and to obtain customer satisfaction.
The Lean Six Sigma in essence consists of the systematic use of statistical methods to reduce
variation and, consequently, costs and defects with a big focus on the customer.

30 graduates completed the six Sigma green
belt certification at host companies. Projects
were identified at their host companies and
realised as a combined total savings of R10m at
the respective suppliers
The AIDC has established a TPM club, which promotes a culture of learning and showcases the
best practices amongst our participating suppliers. Regular Kaizen activities are presented at the
quarterly review meetings to prepare for the Kaizen seminars that are held in the Eastern Cape
every alternate year.

65

7.1.3 CLEANER PRODUCTION (CP):
The AIDC EC supports the automotive industry with energy optimisation, management and
ISO 50001 implementation through its Cleaner Production (CP) programme. Operational cost
reduction, environmental sustainability and competitiveness improvements are the main outcomes
associated with the programme. Energy management principles are used on all levels of the
programme to prepare for future energy management initiatives.
Participating suppliers during the financial year 2017/18, realised an average 7.6% reduction in
their energy consumption and usage.
The companies have been on the Energy Management Programme for the past five years.
Participating companies are encouraged to apply for ISO 50001/ISO 14001 certification to
demonstrate their commitment to the management of Environment and Energy conservation, with
the objective to adopt green energy or alternate energy systems under continuous improvement.
The CP programme remains relevant in the manufacturing industry, due to the high cost
of electricity and other sources of energy. The programme aims to improve manufacturing
competitiveness on an international level to mitigate increasing operational costs. The Cleaner
Production programme is offered in three different phases, and is suggested for each client based
on their energy efficiency and maturity levels.
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GREENBELT
TRAINING

GREENBELT
TRAINING

• Over 65 graduates were trained on Six Sigma Belt, Statistical Process Control, 		
Lean Manufacturing
• 30 Candidates were certified as Lean Six Sigma Green Belt Practitioners
• Over R10m in cost savings from various Lean of Six Sigma Green Belt projects

7.1.5 QUALITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS ( QMS)
THE QMS PROGRAMME HAS BEEN TAILORED TO INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING:

PHASE 1
Energy Efficiency
(Opportunity Identification)

PHASE 2

PHASE 3

Energy Management
System
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ISO 50001
(International Energy
Management system)

Sustainable implementation – the AIDC takes the role of the trainer and facilitators during the
implementation, ensuring that the participating company (i.e. management representatives)
get hands-on experience with the implementation of the system. This enables the participating
companies to understand and maintain their system. Assist the SMMEs with certification of their
quality management system through the relevant and accredited quality management certification.
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7.1.6 PROCESS MAPPING:
Process Mapping is a methodology and requirement by ISO9001 standards with the focus on a
process approach in the delivery of products and services.
•
•
•

STAGE 1, which encompasses the adherence to the quality documentation system.
STAGE 2, which focus on the application of QMS in the processes.
Auditor training, which requires internal auditors to be certified in line with
ISO9001 standards.

01

EMPLOYEE
WELLNESS

02

EMPLOYEE
ENGAGEMENT

03

CONSULTING
& TRAINING

04

BASELINE
ASSESSMENT

Internationally, nationally and locally recognised as good practice and an innovative
approach, the AIDCEC’s wellness management programme has the objective to be
a preferred partner to large companies. For the development, strengthening and
sustainability of relevant structures in their supply chain or other affiliated small
and medium enterprises. Organisational health informed by effective wellness
management and chronic disease education, management and prevention, builds
upon a variety of ongoing, coordinated activities and services, adversely affecting
organisational development, employee engagement and productivity.

7.1.7 QMS ISO9001 CERTIFICATION PROGRAMME:
As part of the QMS ISO9001 certification program, the AIDC assisted its shareholder, ECDC, with
implementing quality management systems in the following 10 participating companies during the
2017/18 year:

The basis of the programme approach applied in this standard is founded on
the concept of “Assess, Plan, Implement, Monitor and Evaluate” (APIME), which
requires leadership, commitment and participation from all levels and functions of
the organisation. It can be described as follows:

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

ASSESS:

assess the non-occupationally induced health risks and the
risks to optimal wellness (baseline and ongoing assessment is
required).

PLAN:

establish objectives, programmes, interventions, campaigns and
processes necessary to deliver results in accordance with the
organisation’s wellness and disease policy and to manage the
identified risks.

IMPLEMENT:

implement the programmes, interventions, campaigns and 		
processes as planned.

MONITOR:

monitor and measure activities (the programmes, interventions,
campaigns) and processes with regard to the policy and 		
objectives, and report the results.

EVALUATE:

take actions to continually improve the wellness and disease 		
performance to achieve the intended outcomes.

Lucob Cleaning (EL)
Brand Systems (PE)
Vtech (PE)
Mend a Bath – PE
Africa’s Best 350 (Mthatha)
Ncerha Macadamia (King Williams Town)
Khula Technologies (EL)
Uphuhliso Trading (EL)
Geoillocate (EL)
Ron Beard Associates (EL)

The key objective for ECDC in funding these programmes is to improve the competitive advantage
of the SMME sector within the Eastern Cape, as they are seen as the key drivers of economic
growth. Economic growth results in increased employment opportunities and government has
identified the SMME sector as the main driver in creating employment opportunities.

AIDC EC provided the shareholder training for 27 of their
employees on QMS Awareness.

7.1.8 SUPPORTING INDUSTRY ON EMPLOYEE WELLNESS:
Globally, society is moving towards greater awareness and practice towards holistic wellness.
Over the years, the majority of South African companies have felt the implications of not having
a wellness programme. As much as this is the case, the manufacturing industry is pressured to
produce more products and also cut down on costs – meaning less time and investment is geared
towards employee wellbeing and preventing a situation of ill health and absenteeism in various
companies.
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During the 2017/18 year the AIDC supported six companies with employee
wellness programmes, reaching a total of 1 124 people and formally training 84
people in the area of employee wellness.
1 124 PEOPLE REACHED THROUGH WELLNESS INTERVENTIONS
6 COMPANIES SUPPORTED
84 PEOPLE TRAINED IN AREAS OF WELLNESS

35

7.2.2 CRITICAL TRAINING IN KEY FOCUS AREAS FOR THE 2017/18 YEAR:
The AIDC provided critical training to a total of 969 people in the following key focus areas:

215

WORLD CLASS MANUFACTURING

92

SIX SIGMA

132

A/

0

7
/1

17
-Q

TOTAL PRODUCTION MAINTENANCE

A CC/1 3 5

9

ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT

53

CLEANER PRODUCTION

396

GRADUATES TRAINING

72

WELLNESS

7.2 SKILLS DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

0

100

200

Skills shortages are widely regarded as the main factor which slows economic growth globally. The
AIDC, through its Skills Development and Training department, focuses on the development and
implementation of skills and training programmes within the automotive industry.

7.2.3 PROGRAMME FOR INDUSTRIAL AND MANUFACTURING EXCELLENCE (PRIME)
The PRIME programme adds impetus and drive to decrease the skills deficit and youth
unemployment rate, by extending the reach of its graduate development programme and
partnering with local government, industry and youth, in the successful implementation of workplace
experience programmes.
The programme strategically supports the production of priority skills in high-level occupational
programmes, in the skills development pipeline. The programme facilitates workplace-based
experience in universities and colleges, with a specific focus on occupations that support economic
growth and encourage job creation. The AIDC assists industry in the transformation of its workforce,
and empowers its people to serve its clients better.

7.2.1 ON THE JOB TRAINING FOR THE 2017/18 YEAR
A total of 765 people received on the job training during the year 2017/18, on the following
programmes:

PRIME specifically supports economic growth, employment creation and social development and
includes an analysis of trends for supply planning and determines the demand in the sector through:

PROGRAMME/MODULE

COURSE CONTENT

Total Productive
Maintenance

The 8 steps of autonomous
maintenance

339

Cleaner Production

General awareness around Energy
Management systems and ISO 50001
implementation

387

Wellness in the
Workplace

Peer Education Employee Morale

Quality Management
Systems

Awareness on basic QMS processes and
implementation for accreditation

TOTAL TRAINED

•
•
•
•
•

7

Engaging workplaces to enable them to provide relevant host functions.
Engaging stakeholders to ascertain their perceptions of future trends in their sectors.
Engaging relevant DHETs, SETAs to explore synergies in addressing current/future 		
skills needs, trends and strategies.
Improve the level of training in occupations in high demand.
Align training to NDP and government and industry priorities.

The programme consists of a structured 12-month staggered training and development programme,
that ensures that its graduates have consistent experience and knowledge. The AIDC has performed
a training needs analysis with industry (host companies) to identify the training required, in order to
meet their skill shortages and to add value to industry (host company).
The programme provides a twofold training programme comprising of:

27
760

36

400

NUMBER OF COMPANIES

The approach is to identify sectors with skills deficiencies, and then to develop programmes to
nurture individuals to drive economic growth across the province and the rest of South Africa. The
main focus of the AIDC EC is to become a catalyst for government to explore solutions to overcome
skills shortages in industry, by developing scarce and critical skills in accordance with long-term
requirements emanating from the automotive sector’s needs. The long-term vision of the AIDC EC
is to become a multi OEM funded training facility within the Nelson Mandela Bay Metro, which is
informed by our vision, goals, and values. As part of the drive to support industry to overcome skills
shortages, the AIDC is proud to have partnered with merSETA, and received accreditation in July
2017. The AIDC EC is currently working on several learning modules on technical and soft skills for
accreditation towards establishing its own learning academy.

TOTAL TRAINED

300
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WORLD CLASS TECHNICAL AND INNOVATIVE TRAINING:
The training that the graduates receive will equip them with the necessary skills to become successful
within their host companies (TPM, Six Sigma, CP, VSM, QMS, Lean Manufacturing, AutoCAD).
LEADERSHIP:
High performing organisations understand that leadership starts at the point of career entry. From
the very early days of a career, establishing a clear line of sight not only gives young talent a direction
and goals, but also enables them to maximise personal performance. In addition, an emotional
commitment to the organisation is strengthened, thus reducing attrition rates (Leadership, Project
Management, Communication, Finance).
PRIME programme is a game changer in the skills field, leveraging the power of
work-based learning.

THE JOBS FUND PRIME PROJECT:
The AIDC, partnering with the Jobs Fund National Treasury, completed the final year of the Jobs Fund
PRIME project. Implemented over the past few years, it has yielded great success.
THE PROJECT IMPACT OVER THE 3-YEAR IMPLEMENTATION PERIOD:

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•

115 Permanent Jobs created over the 3-year project cycle.
A total of 140 graduates received high level technical training that has
equipped them for adding greater value in the workplace.
More than 86% of graduates received employment within the 		
manufacturing industry.
Automotive manufacturing best practices have been transferred to
other manufacturing sectors.
Over 25 % of our graduates have made their way into junior and 		
middle management.
Over 30 Six Sigma Green Belt projects initiated by the AIDC and its
graduates on the shop-floors of automotive companies.
The Green Belt projects have saved the companies involved R10m
Facilitated employment equity and transformation where African 		
black professionals become eligible for middle management positions
in a short space of time.
35% of the candidates are women.

35%
of the candidates
are women.

R10m

115

JOBS
CREATED

R

Has been saved in all
companies involved.

30

SIX SIGMA
GREENBELT
PROJECTS

25%

92%

of our graduates
are in Middle & Junior
management.

Intake of PRIME graduates for the 2017/18 year

38

of PDI graduates
employed
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The project impact over the 3-year
implementation period:
Wheel & Tyre

5m Investment

Battery &
Windscreen
KIOSK - Catering

50%

9

Match
Funding

142%
Target
Achieved

Businesses

2.1m
Assets

71

R6.4m

Perm Jobs
300 +
Citizens
supported

R217k

26%

Wages

GP

Market
Value

ENTERPRISE

DEVELOPMENT
Economic growth is key to addressing unemployment, gender equality, health and other poverty related issues worldwide. Enterprise development (ED) is an important tool and essential element to
economic growth.
The combination of our industry-leading evaluation tools, business development support methodologies and world-class technical manufacturing acumen, sets us apart from other role-players in the
area of manufacturing-related enterprise development.
Our Enterprise and Supplier Development strategy aims to reduce poverty and create employment
by undertaking and supporting investment in initiatives that create jobs and include more people in
the formal economy as well as AIDC’s value chain. Through business development support to new
and established black entrepreneurs, we aim to facilitate the building of commercially viable businesses that are innovative in addressing the needs of the identified sectors.

BUFFALO CITY MUNICIPALITY (BCM) INCUBATEE PROJECT:
AIDC in partnership with Jobs Fund National Treasury, ECDC and Buffalo City Municipality successfully launched an automotive aftermarket incubator in the East London-Mdantsane area, with the aim
of growing the industry and developing new BBBEE companies.

Revenue for
MDTANSANE

Redeploy
Capital

Leather Works
Electrical Services
DB Board / Trailer
Manufacture
Dstv Installations
Paint Factory

Established
more
Business

The AIDC was able to create 9 new businesses, 71 new permanent jobs and a monthly wage bill of
R217 000 with a total investment of R10 million.
The role of the AIDC included identifying incubatees, overall project management and providing mentorship and support to nine incubatees, which included quarterly feedback to Jobs Fund National
Treasury and funders.

THE NINE BUSINESS ENTITIES OPERATE IN
THE FOLLOWING SECTORS:

FOOD &
BEVERAGES

13%

AUTO AFTERMARKET
RETAIL

25%

A 15-year track record and our extensive team of in-house experts in disciplines like world-class manufacturing, QMS, compliance and marketing enable us to provide a reliable, turnkey service needed to
successfully develop and grow small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) into established procurement processes and supply chain systems, focusing on manufacturing sectors.

ENGINEERING SERVICES

25%

The Buffalo City Municipality automotive aftermarket incubator was officially launched on
9 February 2016 by the Executive Mayor and the MEC for, Economic Development Environmental
Affairs and Tourism.

MANUFACTURING

40

Mechanical
Workshop

41

38%

08 2022

STRATEGY

SUPPORT TO THE INCUBATEES WAS PROVIDED IN THE FOLLOWING WAYS:
SPECIALISED SUPPORT:
A long term support engagement with dedicated business development services geared towards
addressing the needs of the individual businesses.
•
•
•

12-month strategic support and mentoring
Quarterly milestones plotting and measurement
Support in technically demanding industry regulation compliance, for example: RMI

8.1 STRATEGIC VISION AND ALIGNMENT
TRANSITION PROCESS FROM CURRENT STRATEGY TO NEW STRATEGY

MEDIUM LEVEL SUPPORT:
A medium term support engagement offering specific services including:
•
•
•
•

The Board of Directors and management of the AIDC EC has developed a revised strategy guided
by the new leadership and the robustness of the newly developed strategic plan of the automotive
sector, Vision 2035, and alignment to the Provincial Economic Development Strategy.

Developing consistency in business practices (costing, quoting, invoicing)
Developing customer relations management practices
Developing internal systems
Ensuring financial management is present and consistent

THE EASTERN CAPE VISION 2030 PROVINCIAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN HAS IDENTIFIED THE
FOLLOWING GOALS AND ALIGNED OBJECTIVES FOR THE PROVINCE:

FOUNDATIONAL SUPPORT:
On-demand support including training and navigation

•
•
•

•
•
•

THE SA AUTOMOTIVE MASTERPLAN 2035 (SAAM 2035) CONTAINS THE FOLLOWING
OBJECTIVES:

Compliance to basic requirements in sector (VAT certificate, CIPC registration)
Basic financial management skills transfer
Business process training

An improvement of economic infrastructure
Stronger industry and enterprise support; and
Rapid development of high-potential economic sectors.

•
•
•
•
•
•

Grow SA vehicle production from 0.65% to 1% of the global output
Increase local content in SA assembled vehicles from 39% to 60%
Double employment levels from 112 000 to 224 000
Improve industry competitiveness levels to that of leading international competitors
Achieve transformation of the South Africa Automotive value chain
Deepen value addition within the South Africa Automotive value chain

SAAM

A GLOBALLY COMPETITIVE AND TRANSFORMED INDUSTRY THAT
ACTIVELY CONTRIBUTES TO THE SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT OF
SOUTH AFRICA’S PRODUCTIVE ECONOMY, CREATING PROSPERITY
FOR INDUSTRY STAKEHOLDERS AND BROADER SOCIETY

2035

OBJECTIVES: 1% of global vehicle production, 60% local content, 100% employment growth,
competitiveness to leading competitor standards, industry transformation, increased value
addition within GVCs
Local market
optimisation

Regional
market
development

Localisation

1

2

3

1+ 2

Infrastructure
development

4

Supporting institutional environment (including M&E)
ENABLING POLICY POST - 2020 (SAAMP phase 5)

During the year under review the project was visited by dti Minister Rob Davies and Oscar
Mabuyane, MEC of Department of Economic Development, Economic Affairs and Tourism.
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Industry
transformation

43

5

Technology and
associated
skills
development

6

KEY CHALLENGES FACING AUTOMOTIVE SUPPLIERS:
•
•
•
•
•
•

KEY
STAKEHOLDERS

Global competition
Lack of transformation
High capital investment requirements
Price margins are low, locked and exchange rate volatility impact
Investment are aligned with the model of the car
High technical environment, which require good leadership and management skills

KEY PILLARS OF AIDC EC OVERALL STRATEGY:
•
•
•

Localisation
Transformation
Skills Development

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Institutional development
Effective communication
Stakeholder engagement
Supplier stability
Localisation
Transformation
Training and development
Projects
Incentives (advisory & information sharing)

PROVINCIAL

THESE PRIORITY AREAS INTER ALIA INCLUDE:
•
•
•
•
•

Transformation within the automotive sector
Employment creation through localisation
Skills development and training
Logistical and Infrastructural support - to make the Eastern Cape an attractive
destination for future suppliers
Stakeholder engagement and advocacy i.e. Government at all levels, East London
and Coega SEZs, and labour where necessary

DTI

NATIONAL

FACILITATE INDUSTRY SUPPORT THROUGH:

CABINET

LOCAL

AUTO SECTOR

DEDEAT

BCM

NAAMSA

Policy framework / Political
support / Funding

ECDC

NMBM

NAACAM

Political support
/ Funding

Budget Aligned strategy

Implementation &
Execution

These objectives are aligned to the developmental imperatives of government to achieve transformation and employment through critical enablers such as skills development (improve industry
competitiveness) and economic growth and development. It is against these enablers that this
business plan considers the role and relevance of the AIDC.

M U N I C I P A L I T Y

44

PART C:

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
1. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE						
2. GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 				
3. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 					
4. INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION 						
5. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS 		
6. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION 						
7. HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES 				
8. COMPANY SECRETARY

AIDC REPORTING STRUCTURE

01 GOVERNANCE
CORPORATE

BOARD OF

DIRECTORS

During the 2017/18 financial year, the board focused its attention on the strengthening of good
corporate governance processes. Part of this process entailed the revision and approval of formal
terms of reference of board sub-committees i.e. the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee; and the
Human Resources, Social and Ethics Committee. The process further entailed the review of governance enhancing policies. The board will continue to strengthen the governance processes of the organisation to ensure that the AIDC EC fulfils its legal mandate in the best interests of all stakeholders.

02 FRAMEWORK
GOVERNANCE

ECDC
(Shareholder)

ECDC
BOARD

BOARD MEMBERS AND AIDC EXECUTIVE
BOARD
CHAIRPERSON
W MOSS

H MAHOMED
AIDC CEO

Z KIVIET
Directors

T MTILA
Directors

G MEYER
Directors

The AIDC is a public entity (Section 3D), subject to the corporate governance rules as laid down by
the Companies Act of 2008 and the Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 1999. As a state
owned company, the organisation subscribes to good corporate governance principles as contained
in the King IV Report on Corporate Governance for South Africa. Reporting procedures and requirements related to the business and activities of the AIDC are therefore both complex and stringent,
which require a diligent management process.

THE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE OF THE AIDC IS AS FOLLOWS:
•
•
•
•

Board of Directors
Audit, Risk and compliance Committee
HR, Social and Ethics Committee
Chief Executive Officer

W MOSS

Z KIVIET

G MEYER

T MTILA

T MOUTON

K RIGA

Board Chairperson

03 DIRECTORS

Deputy Chairperson

BOARD OF

The AIDC Board of Directors monitors compliance with policies and achievement of objectives. Furthermore, the board is responsible for preparing financial statements that accurately reflect the
AIDC EC’s financial position at the end of the financial year.

Director

Director

The board, through its shareholder, is responsible for setting the direction of the company by the
establishment of strategies, key policies and the approval of financial objectives and targets. It monitors the implementation of strategies and policies through a structured approach to reporting by
executive management, and recognises the responsibility for the management of relationships with
its various stakeholders.

Director
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Director
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T MOUTON
Directors

K RIGA
Directors

3.1 ROLE AND COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

3.2 BOARD COMMITTEES

The AIDC has a board of seven directors, comprising an independent non-executive chairperson,
five independent non-executive directors and the chief executive officer. In line with King IV
recommendation, the roles of the chairman and chief executive officer are separate. The chairman’s
role is to lead the board and the CEO is responsible for managing the day-to-day activities of the AIDC.

3.2.1 AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE
The Audit and Risk Committee has six members, three of whom are independent non-executive
directors (appointed by the board) and of whom two were independent members (appointed by the
shareholder). They are neither members of the Board nor managers of the AIDC.

During the 2017/18 financial year four new board members were appointed, the terms of two
members came to an end and one director resigned due to relocation. The AIDC subscribes to the
values and principles enshrined in our constitution dealing with transformation. This is reflected
in the board composition in terms of race and gender, with a 50/50 split between male and
female. 66% of the members are black and 34% white. The board members bring different sets
of competencies and experiences, ranging from the automotive and related industries, financial,
governance, human resources and legal sectors to the board.

AUDIT, RISK AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE
BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

THE BELOW TABLE DEPICTS THE ATTENDANCE BY THE DIRECTORS OF THE BOARD:
K RIGA
Chairperson

ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
YEAR 1 APRIL 2017 TO 31 MARCH 2018

NAME

MAY
2017

AUGUST
2017

OCTOBER
2017

G MEYER
Member

FEBRUARY
ATTENDANCE
2018
100%

D Petrarolo
Term ended
Nov 2017

I Whittal

100%

T Mouton

100%

W Moss

100%

K RIGA

Z KIVIET

G MEYER

J EMSLIE

Chairperson

Member

100%

Z Kiviet
P Voges

Z KIVIET
Member

Resigned
Relocation

NA

0%
100%

H Mahomed

OVERALL THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS HAD A 100% ATTENDANCE FOR THE 2017/18 YEAR

Member

Member

L SMITH
Member
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J EMSLIE
Member

L SMITH
Member

3.2.2 HR, SOCIAL AND ETHICS COMMITTEE
The audit and risk committee’s terms of reference were approved by the board, and they define the
committee’s role and responsibilities.

The HR, social and ethics committee comprises three independent non-executive directors and the
chief executive officer.

THESE INCLUDE:
•

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Consideration of the annual appointment and evaluation of the external
auditors, the audit plan and audit fees
Review of the annual financial statements, prior to submission to
the board
Review of problems arising from external audit and review of the external
auditors’ reports and identification of key issues arising
Monitoring compliance with all applicable legislation
Reviewing the effectiveness of internal controls
Reviewing the control of the overall operational and financial reporting
environment
Reviewing the adequacy, reliability and accuracy of financial information
provided to management and other users of such information.
Monitoring the implementation and adherence of the code of ethics
Developing and monitoring the implementation of the ethics risk and 		
opportunity profile
Ensuring the AIDC has an effective disclosure of interest system

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

T MOUTON
Chairperson

T MOUTON

T MTILA
Member

K RIGA
Member

T MTILA

Chairperson

Member

The audit and risk committee fulfilled its duties by meeting and reviewing, inter alia, quarterly financial
information, internal audit reports and governance related matters.
THE BELOW TABLE DEPICTS THE ATTENDANCE BY THE MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE:
ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT, RISK AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE
FOR THE YEAR 1 APRIL 2017 TO 31 MARCH 2018

NAME

MAY
2017

JULY
2017

OCTOBER
2017

JANUARY
2018

ATTENDANCE

K RIGA
Member

100%

I Whittal
Term ended Nov 2017

K Abrahams

100%

J Emslie

Appointed
May 2017

100%

L Smith

Appointed
May 2017

100%

IN TERMS OF THE COMMITTEE’S APPROVED TERMS OF REFERENCE, ITS
ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES INCLUDE:
•
•
•

100%

H Mahomed

•
•
•
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Assisting the Board with developing and implementing a succession
plan for executive managers
Reviewing the executive management structure and recommending
any changes to the board
Assisting the board with developing and monitoring the 			
implementation of human resources related policies
Assisting the board with the development and implementation of 		
performance measurement criteria
Ensuring that executive managers are fairly, but responsibly rewarded
for their individual contribution to the achievement of AIDC objectives
Ensuring that adequate internal controls are in place to detect and
prevent fraud, bribery and other corrupt activities

04 AUDIT FUNCTION
INTERNAL

The internal audit function monitors the operation of the internal control systems they rely upon, and
report findings and recommendations to management; the audit, risk and compliance committee;
and the board of directors. Corrective actions are taken to address control deficiencies and other
opportunities for improving the system as they are identified.
THE BELOW TABLE DEPICTS THE ATTENDANCE BY THE MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE:
ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES, SOCIAL AND
ETHICS COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE
FOR THE YEAR 1 APRIL 2017 TO 31 MARCH 2018

MAY
2017

NAME

OCTOBER
2017

FEBRUARY
ATTENDANCE
2018

The board, operating through its audit, risk and compliance committee, oversees the financial
reporting process and internal control system.For the period under review the following work
was undertaken:
•
•
•

T Mouton

100%

S Abader

100%

M Nichols

Resigned

0%
100%

H Mahomed

During the 2017/18 financial year two members of the human resources, social and ethics
committee resigned due to relocation and other work commitments which impacted negatively on
the work of the committee and was replaced with two members subsequent to the financial year
end. The above organogram depicts the current structure of the human resources, social and
ethics committee subsequent to year end.

3.2.3 RISK MANAGEMENT
Effective risk management is driven by a strong risk management culture. This culture is based
on a fundamental and philosophical core that guides the overall approach to risk. The culture also
sets the tone throughout the AIDC to practice the right risk behaviour consistently.The Board
considers risk management an important element in ensuring the sustainability of the AIDC and the
achievement of its strategic objectives. Management is continuously developing and enhancing its
risk and control procedures to improve the mechanisms for identifying and monitoring risks. For this
reason, the management team has developed a comprehensive risk management plan which lists
risk areas, impact, probabilities and impact of occurrence, corrective action, preventative action and
responsible people.

The Internal audit annual operations and its three-year plans were considered and 		
approved by the audit and risk committee
All internal audit work performed, including internal audit reports and progress reports,
were reviewed by the audit and risk committee
The internal audit department completed four quarterly audits on the performance 		
information of the AIDC

AND
05 LAWS
REGULATIONS
COMPLIANCE WITH

Compliance with laws and regulations is recognised as an important element in the governance and
due diligence of organisations, more particularly in the public sector space. It is important because
non-compliance has the potential to erode the goodwill and governance of an organisation. The AIDC
was fully compliant with all the relevant laws and regulations during the year under review.

06 CORRUPTION
FRAUD AND

During the year under review the board strengthened the organisation’s ability to fight fraud and
corruption through the fraud prevention policy. The company has implemented a fraud and ethics
hotline through its shareholder to further reduce or prevent incidences of fraud and corruption.
For the 2017/18 financial year no incidences of fraud or corruption were reported.

To this end, during the year under review, the Board reviewed the strategic risk of the organisation
quarterly.
THE FOLLOWING MAJOR STRATEGIC RISKS WERE IDENTIFIED:
•
•

Financial unsustainability due to limited funding
Inadequate information management systems that can affect business continuity
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07 ENVIRONMENTAL
ISSUES
HEALTH, SAFETY AND

The AIDC cares about its employees and their work environment and seeks to ensure, as far as it is
reasonably possible, the health and safety of all employees in the workplace, as well as that of all other people conducting business on its premises. The organisation is committed to the fulfilment of the
requirements stipulated in the Occupational Health and Safety Act, 1993 (Act No. 85 of 1993) and,
to this end, has established a health and safety representative committee to monitor its employees
and their work environment.
The following measures have been implemented to ensure compliance with the Occupational
Health and Safety Act, 1993 (Act No. 85 of 1993):
•
•

The return of earnings was successfully completed and submitted to the Compensation
Commissioner
A letter of good standing was issued to the organisation

08 SECRETARY
COMPANY

The Board appointed a company secretary and all directors have access to her advice and services.
The company secretary is responsible to the board for ensuring compliance with procedures, applicable laws and effective administration of board affairs. The company secretary ensures the efficient
and effective functioning of the board through the timely distribution of information that helps members to perform their duties properly. The company secretary co-ordinates the induction process for
newly appointed board members.
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PART D:

HUMAN RESOURCE

MANAGEMENT
1. INTRODUCTION 						
2. LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT OF OUR EMPLOYEES
3. EMPLOYEE HEALTH AND WELLNESS
4. EMPLOYMENT BY DEPARTMENT
5. EMPLOYEE PROFILE

CRITICAL KEY FOCUS AREAS FOR THE 2017/18 YEAR WERE:
•

Translate the AIDC business strategy into a simple actionable
HR strategy
Define and translate HR strategy into key people initiatives
and programmes
Align HR solutions and services to meet business needs
Identify the best way to attract, motivate and retain new and existing
employees for the organisation
Improve HR operational excellence continuously
Measure impact of HR products

•
•
•
•
•

02 OUR EMPLOYEES
LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT OF

HR OVERVIEW
Human Resources provides the core business with support by managing talent
strategically. Its primary responsibility is ensuring that the AIDC is well-capacitated
with scarce and critical skills, attracts the best talent, and has the requisite skills
and competencies for delivering against the organisation’s mandate.

01 INTRODUCTION

Integral to the AIDC EC strategy, as a provider of technical services to automotive industry sector,
is to ensure that it has the resources of talented and skilled people who are passionate about their
work. The total staff complement of the AIDC EC as at 31 March 2018 was 26 employees. Attracting
the best talent available remained a key driver of the human resources agenda in the year under
review. The organisation is fully committed and intentional in ensuring that the natural demographics
of the South African society are reflected in the workforce.

SHARED VALUES

Integrity and
Ethics above all

Teamwork

Open and honest
two-way
communication

Client-Centred

Encouraging a
learning culture

On-time, on-brief,
on-budget

The AIDC continues to encourage diversity through cultivating the above shared values throughout
the organisation. These values are entrenched in the daily working environment of the AIDC and
employees are encouraged to live these values.
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03 WELLNESS

EMPLOYEE HEALTH &

The AIDC has a comprehensive wellness programme that encourages employees to choose healthier, more-balanced lifestyles. The objective is to offer a productive environment where an employee’s
emotional wellbeing is valued and to enhance productivity in the workplace. The wellness programme
gives employees the chance to check the status of their health. On wellness days, employees are
given the opportunity to undergo health screenings and given counselling if required and offered
health advice.

04 DEPARTMENT
EMPLOYMENT BY

Respect for
others

SHARED
VALUES

The AIDC is a learning organisation committed to the continual training and development of employees by means of various learning programmes. A total amount of R 2 560 353 was invested in
training and development programmes for both AIDC employees and 65 industry hosted graduate
trainees. The AIDC is committed to promote a learning culture that enables employees to develop
their full potential.

DEPARTMENTS

2016/17
APPROVED POSTS

2017/18 OF
EMPLOYEES

Office of the CEO

2

3

Financial Services

4

4

11

10

Skills Development and Training

1

1

Enterprise Development

4

2

Wellness Department

4

2

Human Resources

1

1

Business Support

3

3

30

26

Supplier Development Department

TOTAL
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As an organisation that is project driven, we have permanent and project-based staff. The above
table is a summary of the different business units.
During the 2017/18 year there was a 9% reduction in the supplier development department. These
were mostly project based positions sourced on an as-need basis. The reduction on the enterprise
development department is due to the implementation stage of the contract being finalised at the
end of the financial year. The reduction of 50% in the wellness department was due to a GIZ programme that came to an end.
During the 2017/2018 financial year there was a retention rate of 85% on permanent positions.

05 31 MARCH 2018
EMPLOYEE PROFILE AS AT

MALE
DEPARTMENTS

A

C

Top Management

I

FEMALE
W

A

C

W

MALE

FEMALE

1
1

Professionals

1

Skilled

3

1

1

3

1

Semi-skilled

2

1

Unskilled

1
4

4
2

2

1

TOTAL

1

Senior Management

TOTAL

I

FOREIGN NATIONALS

4

7

1

2

1

8
1

10

1

4
1

3

1

3

1

0

26

The policies of the AIDC, as well as the employment practices, emphasise and promote equal
opportunities, fair and just treatment and the elimination of unfair discrimination for all. The
organisation complies and promotes the Employment Equity Act as it employs 54% woman and
73% black employees.

54%

WOMAN EMPLOYED

73%

BLACK EMPLOYED
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(Registration number 2003/018741/30)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

Directors’ Report
The directors have pleasure in submitting their report on the financial statements of AIDC Development Centre Eastern Cape (SOC) Ltd for
the year ended 31 March 2018.
1.

Nature of business

AIDC Development Centre Eastern Cape (SOC) Ltd was incorporated in South Africa with interests in the Automotive industry.
The company operates in South Africa.
The main activity of the company is to provide strategic solutions and support services to the automotive and broader manufacturing industry.
This is seen as an important contributer to the Eastern Cape province`s economic development. The impact of the services rendered by the
company is presented in more detail within the annual report.
The following are the key focus areas of delivery within the company:
- Supplier Development which addresses the challenges in international competition and the constant increase in operational 		
elements of quality, cost, delivery and performance;
- Supply Chain Development which addresses the need for robust supply chain infrastructure which will have a direct and 			
measurable impact on the global competitiveness of the automotive industry;
- Skills Development and Training which aim to provide a skilled workforce through the relevant technical training and 			
development initiatives based on automotive and broader manufacturing requirements.
There have been no material changes to the nature of the company’s business from the prior year.
2.

Review of financial results and activities

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the
Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999) and the Companies Act 71 of 2008 and Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999).
The accounting policies have been applied consistently compared to the prior year.
The company recorded a net profit after tax for the year ended 31 March 2018 of R 835 707. This represented an increase from the net
profit after tax of the prior year of R545 462.
The large increase in net profit after tax is due to a large deferred tax asset being recognised associated with the assessed loss of the company.
The deferred tax asset in prior years was not recognised as the company did not expect to utilise the assessed loss in the foreseeable future.
The company has budgeted for a net profit before tax for the current and future financial year in order to decrease the assessed loss of the
organisation. The profit before tax will be used for asset replacement and these amounts are placed in an asset replacement reserve.
Company revenue decreased from R5 645 877 in the prior year to R3 965 009 for the year ended 31 March 2018.
Full details of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the company is set out in these financial statements.
3.

Share capital
20182017
Number of shares
1 0001 000

Authorised
Ordinary shares
2018
Issued
Ordinary shares

2017
R

100

R

There have been no changes to the authorised or issued share capital during the year under review.w
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100

20182017
Number of shares
100100

AIDC DEVELOPMENT CENTRE EASTERN CAPE (SOC) LTD

AIDC DEVELOPMENT CENTRE EASTERN CAPE (SOC) LTD

Directors’ Report

Directors’ Report

(Registration number 2003/018741/30)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

4.

11. Going concern

Insurance and risk management

The company follows a policy of reviewing the risks relating to assets and possible liabilities arising from business transactions with its insurers
on an annual basis. Wherever possible assets are automatically included. There is also a continuous asset risk control programme, which is
carried out in conjunction with the company’s insurance brokers. All risks are considered to be adequately covered, except for political risks,
in the case of which as much cover as is reasonably available has been arranged.
5.

Directorate

The directors in office at the date of this report are as follows:
Directors
Dino Petrarolo (Chairperson)
Welile Moss (Chairperson)
Ian Whittal

Office
Chairperson
Chairperson
Board of Directors

Designation
Non-executive
Non-executive
Non-executive

Pierre Voges

Board of Directors

Non-executive

Hoosain Mahomed (CEO)
Tracey Mouton
Zamela Kiviet
Kamlesh Riga
Princess Mtila
Gustav Meyer

Chief Executive Officer
Board of Directors
Board of Directors
Board of Directors
Board of Directors
Board of Directors

Executive
Non-executive
Non-executive
Non-executive
Non-executive
Non-executive

Changes
Resigned 06 April 2018
Appointed 15 May 2018
Resigned 04 November
2017
Appointed 15 May 2017,
resigned 20 September
2017
Appointed 15 May 2017
Appointed 15 May 2017
Appointed 01 May 2018
Appointed 01 May 2018
Appointed 01 May 2018

Dr. Dino Petrarolo resigned as a non-executive director and Chairperson effective 6 April 2018, and Mr Welile Moss was appointed on the
same date to succeed as Chairperson of the Board with registration date of 15 May 2018.
6.

(Registration number 2003/018741/30)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

Directors’ interests in contracts

We draw attention to the fact that at 31 March 2018, the company had accumulated losses of R (320 001) and that the company’s total
liabilities exceed its assets by R (319 901)
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis presumes that
funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and
commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.
The ability of the company to continue as a going concern is however highly dependant on receiving MTEF funding for the 2018-19 financial year
from it`s shareholder, ECDC. A three year budget allocation letter has been received with confirmed funding for operations of R15,2 million,
R16 million and R17,3 million for the 2018-19 up to and including the 2020-21 financial year.
The ability to continue as a going concern is also dependent on the directors continuing to procure funding for the ongoing operations of the
company and that the subordination agreement referred to in note 10 of these financial statements will remain in force for the period it takes
to restore the solvency of the company.
12. Auditors
Moore Stephens WK Incorporated continued in office as auditors for the company for 2018.
13. Secretary
The company secretary is Mrs Yogavelli Naidoo.
Business address:
					
					
					
					

Broll House
1st Floor
73 2nd Avenue
Newton Park, Port Elizabeth
6045

During the financial year, no contracts were entered into which directors or officers of the company had an interest and which significantly
affected the business of the company.
7.

Property, plant and equipment

There was no change in the nature of the property, plant and equipment of the company or in the policy regarding their use.
At 31 March 2018 the company’s investment in property, plant and equipment amounted to R377 249 (2017: R 812 525), of
which R377 200 (2017: R 882 090) was added in the current year through additions.
8.

Shareholder

The company’s shareholder is Eastern Cape Development Corporation (“ECDC”) which holds 100% (2017: 100%) of the company’s equity.
9.

Borrowing powers

The company did not enter into any borrowing transactions during the year under review. The company continues to have no significant
interest bearing debt.
10. Events after the reporting period
The directors are not aware of any material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of this report.
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AIDC DEVELOPMENT CENTRE EASTERN CAPE (SOC) LTD
(Registration number 2003/018741/30)
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2018
Figures in Rand

Notes

2018

2017

3
4
5

377 249
46 109
307 245

812 525
47 335
-

730 603

859 860

630 176
114 220
12 615 873

855 085
168 997
13 618 978

13 360 269

14 643 060

14 090 872

15 502 920

Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Deferred tax

Current Assets
Trade and other receivables
Loans to incubatees
Cash and cash equivalents

6
7
8

Total Assets
Equity and Liabilities

Equity
Share capital
Accumulated loss

9

100
100
(320 001) (1 155 708)
(319 901) (1 155 608)

Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Finance lease liabilities
Operating lease liability
Deferred income
Deferred tax

11
12
13
5

87 842
2 805
268 873
-

6 114
805 818
5 241

359 520

817 173

1 534 819
2 000 000
23 677
11 218
9 619 374
12 165
850 000

1 821 983
2 000 000
10 864
12 873
11 995 635
-

14 051 253

15 841 355

Total Liabilities

14 410 773

16 658 528

Total Equity and Liabilities

14 090 872

15 502 920

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Loan from shareholder
Finance lease liabilities
Operating lease liability
Deferred income
Current tax payable
Cluster funds received in advance

76

14
10
11
12
13
15
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Statement of Changes in Equity

(Registration number 2003/018741/30)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

Figures in Rand
Revenue
Project expenses
Gross profit
Other income
Operating gains (losses)
Other operating expenses

(Registration number 2003/018741/30)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

Notes

2018

2017

17

3 965 009
(2 407 665)

5 645 877
(4 480 396)

18

1 557 344
1 165 481
18 168 969 14 779 357
(359 592)
10 294
(19 613 796) (16 094 964)

Operating loss
Investment income
Finance costs

19
20
21

(247 075)
790 435
(7 974)

(139 832)
674 855
(5 858)

Profit before taxation
Taxation

22

535 386
300 321

529 165
16 297

835 707

545 462

Profit for the year
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Figures in Rand

Share capital

Accumulated Loss

Total Equity

100

(1 701 170)

(1 701 070)

-

545 462

545 462

100

(1 155 708)

(1 155 608)

-

835 707

835 707

100

(320 001)

(319 901)

Balance at 01 April 2016
Profit for the year
Balance at 01 April 2017
Profit for the year
Balance at 31 March 2018
9

Notes
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Statement of Cash Flows

Accounting Policies
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Figures in Rand

(Registration number 2003/018741/30)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

Notes

2018

2017

1.

Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
Cash flows from operating activities

1.1 Basis of preparation

Cash receipts from operating grants and customers
Cash paid tosuppliers and employees
23

Cash generated from operations
Interest income
Finance costs
Tax received

24

Net cash from operating activities

14 936 474
(9 647 071)

17 044 325
(12 442 203)

5 289 403
790 435
-

4 602 122
674 855
(5 858)
84 672

6 079 838

5 355 791

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis in accordance with, and in compliance with, International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) interpretations issued and effective at
the time of preparing these financial statements and the Companies Act 71 of 2008 and Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999)
of South Africa, as amended.
These financial statements comply with the requirements of the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices
Committee and the Financial Reporting Pronouncements as issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council.
The financial statements have been prepared on the historic cost convention, unless otherwise stated in the accounting policies which follow
and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. They are presented in South African Rands, which is the company’s functional
currency. Rounding is to the nearest R1.
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

Cash flows from financing activities

1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty
3
3
4

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of other intangible assets
Loans advanced to incubatees
Loans repaid from incubatees
Net cash from investing activities

(247 251)
26 673
(89 209)
(123 386)
108 061

(882 090)
11 166
(66 014)
(70 000)
75 664

(325 112)

(931 274)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management, from time to time, to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. These estimates and
associated assumptions are based on experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
Management did not make critical judgements in the application of accounting policies, apart from those involving estimations, which would
significantly affect the financial statements.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Cash flows from financing activities
Government grants received for special projects
Government grants utilised for special projects
Movement in finance leases

4 335 520
(11 056 082)
(37 269)

4 510 487
(6 918 067)
(21 773)

Net cash from financing activities

(6 757 831)

(2 429 353)

Total cash movement for the year
Cash at the beginning of the year

(1 003 105)
13 618 978

1 995 164
11 623 814

12 615 873

13 618 978

Total cash at end of the year

8

The financial statements do not include assets or liabilities whose carrying amounts were determined based on estimations for which there is
a significant risk of material adjustments in the following financial year as a result of the key estimation assumptions.
1.3 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets which the company holds for its own use or for rental to others and which are expected to
be used for more than one year.
An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the company, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. Cost includes all of the expenditure which is directly attributable to the acquisition or
construction of the asset, including the capitalisation of borrowing costs on qualifying assets and adjustments in respect of hedge accounting,
where appropriate.
Expenditure incurred subsequently for major services, additions to or replacements of parts of property, plant and equipment are capitalised
if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the company and the cost can be measured reliably.
Day to day servicing costs are included in profit or loss in the year in which they are incurred.
Property, plant and equipment is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, except
for land which is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
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1.3 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

1.4 Intangible assets (continued)

Depreciation of an asset commences when the asset is available for use as intended by management. Depreciation is charged to write off the
asset’s carrying amount over its estimated useful life to its estimated residual value, using a method that best reflects the pattern in which
the asset’s economic benefits are consumed by the company. Leased assets are depreciated in a consistent manner over the shorter of
their expected useful lives and the lease term. Depreciation is not charged to an asset if its estimated residual value exceeds or is equal to its
carrying amount. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held for sale or derecognised.

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that the asset may be
impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over its useful life.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:

(Registration number 2003/018741/30)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

Item
Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment
IT equipment
Security equipment
Finance lease asset

(Registration number 2003/018741/30)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

Depreciation method

Average useful life

Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line

3 - 10 years
3 - 20 years
1 - 20 years
3 - 9 years
3 - 5 years
5 years

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting year. If the expectations differ
from previous estimates, the change is accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated
separately.
The depreciation charge for each year is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset. Impairment
tests are performed on property, plant and equipment when there is an indicator that they may be impaired. When the carrying amount of
an item of property, plant and equipment is assessed to be higher than the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss to bring the carrying amount in line with the recoverable amount.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its continued
use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item, is included in profit or loss when the item is derecognised.

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not recognised as intangible
assets.

Item
Computer software and license fees

Useful life
1 - 5 years

1.5 Financial instruments
Classification
The company classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the following categories:
Loans and receivables
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were obtained / incurred and takes place at initial recognition.
Classification is re-assessed on an annual basis.
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial instruments are recognised initially when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
The company classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity
instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.
Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value.

1.4 Intangible assets

For financial instruments which are not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of the
instrument.

An intangible asset is recognised when:
it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity; and
the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Subsequent measurement

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.
An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised when:
it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale.
there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.
there is an ability to use or sell it.
it will generate probable future economic benefits.
there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset.
the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably.
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period
over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows. Amortisation is not provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested
for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is
provided on a straight line basis over their useful life.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less accumulated impairment
losses.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the
company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Fair value determination
The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for unlisted
securities), the company establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models making maximum
use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed every period-end.
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1.5 Financial instruments (continued)

1.5 Financial instruments (continued)

Cluster funds received in advance

Impairment of financial assets
At each reporting date the company assesses all financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, to determine whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets has been impaired.
For amounts due to the company, significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy and default of
payments are all considered indicators of impairment.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in the financial asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the financial asset at the date that the impairment
is reversed shall not exceed what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Cluster Funds in advance are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method.
1.6 Tax
Current tax assets and liabilities
Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already paid in respect of current and
prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is recognised as an asset.
Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the tax
authorities, using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss except for equity investments classified as available-for-sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Where financial assets are impaired through use of an allowance account, the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss within
operating expenses. When such assets are written off, the write off is made against the relevant allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against operating expenses.

A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit
(tax loss).

Loans to (from) group companies

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. A deferred tax asset is not recognised when it arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

These include loans to and from holding companies, fellow subsidiaries, subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates and are recognised initially
at fair value plus direct transaction costs.
Loans to group companies are classified as loans and receivables.
Loans from group companies are classified as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.
Loans to shareholders, directors, managers, employees and incubatees
These financial assets are classified as loans and receivables.
Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is
impaired. The allowance recognised is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or
loss within operating expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectable, it is written off against the allowance account for trade receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against operating expenses in profit or loss.
Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Tax expenses
Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the period, except to the extent that the
tax arises from:
a transaction or event which is recognised, in the same or a different period, to other comprehensive income, or
a business combination.
Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited to other comprehensive income if the tax relates to items that are credited or
charged, in the same or a different period, to other comprehensive income.
Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited directly to equity if the tax relates to items that are credited or charged, in the same
or a different period, directly in equity.
1.7 Leases
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is classified as an
operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.

Trade and other payables
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These are initially and subsequently recorded
at fair value.
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1.7 Leases (continued)

1.9 Share capital and equity (continued)

Finance leases – lessee

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased
property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of
financial position as a finance lease obligation.

1.10 Employee benefits

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease.

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid vacation leave and sick
leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered and are not
discounted.

(Registration number 2003/018741/30)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

The lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability.The finance charge is allocated to
each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of return on the remaining balance of the liability.

(Registration number 2003/018741/30)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

Short-term employee benefits

Operating leases – lessee

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase their entitlement
or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between the amounts
recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset. This liability is not discounted.

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or constructive obligation to make
such payments as a result of past performance.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred.

Defined contribution plans

1.8 Impairment of assets

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due.

The company assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

Payments made to industry-managed (or state plans) retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as defined contribution plans where the
company’s obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan.

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the company also:

1.11 Provisions and contingencies

tests intangible assets with an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not yet available for use for impairment annually by comparing its
carrying amount with its recoverable amount. This impairment test is performed during the annual period and at the same time every
period.

Provisions are recognised when:
the company has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and
a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

tests goodwill acquired in a business combination for impairment annually.
If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is
determined.
The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
That reduction is an impairment loss.
An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.
An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior periods for assets other
than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated.
The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation other than goodwill is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation increase.

The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.
Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement shall be
recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement
shall be treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the provision.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract shall be recognised and measured as a provision.
A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity:
has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least:
the business or part of a business concerned;
the principal locations affected;
-

the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for terminating their services;
the expenditures that will be undertaken; and
when the plan will be implemented; and

has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that plan or announcing its
main features to those affected by it.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in business combinations that are recognised separately are subsequently
measured at the higher of:
the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and
the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised.

1.9 Share capital and equity
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1.12 Government grants
Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that:
the company will comply with the conditions attaching to them; and
the grants will be received.

(Registration number 2003/018741/30)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

1.15 Borrowing costs (continued)
Actual borrowing costs on funds specifically borrowed for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset less any temporary investment of those
borrowings.

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs that they are intended to
compensate.

Weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the entity on funds generally borrowed for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.
The borrowing costs capitalised do not exceed the total borrowing costs incurred.

A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the entity with no future related costs is recognised as income of the period in which it becomes receivable.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when:
expenditures for the asset have occurred;
borrowing costs have been incurred, and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.

Government grants related to assets, including non-monetary grants at fair value, are presented in the statement of financial position by
setting up the grant as deferred income or by deducting the grant in arriving at the carrying amount of the asset.
Repayment of a grant related to income is applied first against any un-amortised deferred credit set up in respect of the grant. To the extent
that the repayment exceeds any such deferred credit, or where no deferred credit exists, the repayment is recognised immediately as an
expense.
Repayment of a grant related to an asset is recorded by increasing the carrying amount of the asset or reducing the deferred income balance
by the amount repayable. The cumulative additional depreciation that would have been recognised to date as an expense in the absence of the
grant is recognised immediately as an expense.
1.13 Revenue
When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with the transaction is
recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting period. The outcome of a transaction can be
estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

Capitalisation is suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted.
Capitalisation ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete.
All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
1.16 Related parties
The company operates in an economic environment currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by South African Government.
As a result of constitutional independence of all three spheres of government in South Africa, only parties under the executive authority of the
Eastern Cape Development Corporation will be treated as related parties.
Key management is defined as being individuals with the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
entity. We regard all individuals reporting directly to the Chief Executive Officer as key management per the definition standard.

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the company;
the stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting period can be measured reliably; and
the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

Other related party transactions are also disclosed in terms of the requirements of the standard. The objective of the standard and the financial
statements is to provide relevant and reliable information and therefor materiality is considered in the disclosure of these transactions.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue shall be recognised only to the
extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Irregular expenditure means expenditure incurred in contravention of, or not in accordance with, a requirement of the Public Finance
Management Act, Act 1 of 1999 as amended.

Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting period.
Stage of completion is determined by services performed to date as a percentage of total services to be performed.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure that was made in vain and could have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised.
In accordance with the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act, the details are included in a note to the financial statements.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the amounts receivable for goods and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of trade discounts and volume rebates, and value added tax.

Any irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure is charged against income in the period in which it occurs.

1.17 Irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective interest rate method.
Service fees included in the price of the product are recognised as revenue over the period during which the service is performed.
1.14 Cost of sales
The related cost of providing services recognised as revenue in the current period is included in cost of sales.
Contract costs comprise:
costs that relate directly to the specific contract;
costs that are attributable to contract activity in general and can be allocated to the contract; and
such other costs as are specifically chargeable to the customer under the terms of the contract.
1.15 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of
the cost of that asset until such time as the asset is ready for its intended use. The amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is
determined as follows:
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New Standards and Interpretations

2.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year
In the current year, the company has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current financial year and
that are relevant to its operations:
Amendments to IAS 7: Disclosure initiative
The amendment requires entities to provide additional disclosures for changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.
Specifically, entities are now required to provide disclosure of the following changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:
changes from financing cash flows;
changes arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses;
the effect of changes in foreign exchanges;
changes in fair values; and
other changes.

(Registration number 2003/018741/30)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

New Standards and Interpretations (continued)

The interpretation clarifies how to apply the recognition and measurement requirements in IAS 12 when there is uncertainty over income tax
treatments. Specifically, if it is probable that the tax authorities will accept the uncertain tax treatment, then all tax related items are measured
according to the planned tax treatment. If it is not probable that the tax authorities will accept the uncertain tax treatment, then the tax related
items are measured on the basis of probabilities to reflect the uncertainty. Changes in facts and circumstances are required to be treated as
changes in estimates and applied prospectively.
The effective date of the interpretation is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2019.
The company expects to adopt the interpretation for the first time in the 2020 financial statements.
It is unlikely that the interpretation will have a material impact on the company’s financial statements.
IFRS 16 Leases

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2017.

IFRS 16 Leases is a new standard which replaces IAS 17 Leases, and introduces a single lessee accounting model. The main changes arising
from the issue of IFRS 16 which are likely to impact the company are as follows:

The company has adopted the amendment for the first time in the 2018 financial statements.

Company as lessee:

The impact of the amendment is not material.

Lessees are required to recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases, except short term leases or leases where the
underlying asset has a low value, which are expensed on a straight line or other systematic basis.

Amendments to IAS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
In terms of IAS 12 Income Taxes, deferred tax assets are recognised only when it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences can be utilised. The following amendments have been made, which may have an impact on the company:

The cost of the right-of-use asset includes, where appropriate, the initial amount of the lease liability; lease payments made prior to
commencement of the lease less incentives received; initial direct costs of the lessee; and an estimate for any provision for dismantling,
restoration and removal related to the underlying asset.

If tax law restricts the utilisation of losses to deductions against income of a specific type, a deductible temporary difference is assessed in
combination only with other deductible temporary differences of the appropriate type.

The lease liability takes into consideration, where appropriate, fixed and variable lease payments; residual value guarantees to be made by
the lessee; exercise price of purchase options; and payments of penalties for terminating the lease.

Additional guidelines were prescribed for evaluating whether the company will have sufficient taxable profit in future periods. The company is
required to compare the deductible temporary differences with future taxable profit that excludes tax deductions resulting from the reversal
of those deductible temporary differences. This comparison shows the extent to which the future taxable profit is sufficient for the entity to
deduct the amounts resulting from the reversal of those deductible temporary differences.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured on the cost model at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment and adjusted
for any re-measurement of the lease liability. However, right-of-use assets are measured at fair value when they meet the definition of
investment property and all other investment property is accounted for on the fair value model. If a right-of-use asset relates to a class of
property, plant and equipment which is measured on the revaluation model, then that right-of-use asset may be measured on the revaluation
model.

The amendment also provides that the estimate of probable future taxable profit may include the recovery of some of an entity’s assets for
more than their carrying amount if there is sufficient evidence that it is probable that the entity will achieve this.
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2017.
The company has adopted the amendment for the first time in the 2018 financial statements.
The impact of the amendment is not material.
2.2 Standards and interpretations not yet effective
The company has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for the
company’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2018 or later periods:
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The lease liability is subsequently increased by interest, reduced by lease payments and re-measured for reassessments or modifications.
Re-measurements of lease liabilities are affected against right-of-use assets, unless the assets have been reduced to nil, in which case
further adjustments are recognised in profit or loss.
The lease liability is re-measured by discounting revised payments at a revised rate when there is a change in the lease term or a change in
the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
The lease liability is re-measured by discounting revised lease payments at the original discount rate when there is a change in the amounts
expected to be paid in a residual value guarantee or when there is a change in future payments because of a change in index or rate used to
determine those payments.
Certain lease modifications are accounted for as separate leases. When lease modifications which decrease the scope of the lease are not
required to be accounted for as separate leases, then the lessee re-measures the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the
right of lease asset to reflect the full or partial termination of the lease. Any gain or loss relating to the full or partial termination of the lease
is recognised in profit or loss. For all other lease modifications which are not required to be accounted for as separate leases, the lessee
re-measures the lease liability by making a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities should be presented separately from other assets and liabilities. If not, then the line item in which
they are included must be disclosed. This does not apply to right-of-use assets meeting the definition of investment property which must be
presented within investment property. IFRS 16 contains different disclosure requirements compared to IAS 17 leases.
Company as lessor:
Accounting for leases by lessors remains similar to the provisions of IAS 17 in that leases are classified as either finance leases or operating
leases. Lease classification is reassessed only if there has been a modification.
A modification is required to be accounted for as a separate lease if it both increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use one
or more underlying assets; and the increase in consideration is commensurate to the stand alone price of the increase in scope.
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2.

New Standards and Interpretations (continued)

If a finance lease is modified, and the modification would not qualify as a separate lease, but the lease would have been an operating lease if
the modification was in effect from inception, then the modification is accounted for as a separate lease. In addition, the carrying amount of
the underlying asset shall be measured as the net investment in the lease immediately before the effective date of the modification. IFRS 9 is
applied to all other modifications not required to be treated as a separate lease.
Modifications to operating leases are required to be accounted for as new leases from the effective date of the modification. Changes have
also been made to the disclosure requirements of leases in the lessor’s financial statements.
Sale and leaseback transactions:
In the event of a sale and leaseback transaction, the requirements of IFRS 15 are applied to consider whether a performance obligation is
satisfied to determine whether the transfer of the asset is accounted for as the sale of an asset.
If the transfer meets the requirements to be recognised as a sale, the seller-lessee must measure the new right-of-use asset at the
proportion of the previous carrying amount of the asset that relates to the right-of-use retained. The buyer-lessor accounts for the purchase
by applying applicable standards and for the lease by applying IFRS 16
If the fair value of consideration for the sale is not equal to the fair value of the asset, then IFRS 16 requires adjustments to be made to
the sale proceeds. When the transfer of the asset is not a sale, then the seller-lessee continues to recognise the transferred asset and
recognises a financial liability equal to the transfer proceeds. The buyer-lessor recognises a financial asset equal to the transfer proceeds.
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2019.
The company expects to adopt the standard for the first time in the 2020 financial statements.
It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on the company’s financial statements.
Amendments to IFRS 15: Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
The amendment provides clarification and further guidance regarding certain issues in IFRS 15. These items include guidance in assessing
whether promises to transfer goods or services are separately identifiable; guidance regarding agent versus principal considerations; and
guidance regarding licenses and royalties.
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2018.
The company expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2019 financial statements.
It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the company’s financial statements.
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 introduced new requirements for the classification and measurements of financial assets. IFRS 9 was
subsequently amended in October 2010 to include requirements for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and in November 2013 to include the new requirements for general hedge accounting. Another revised version of IFRS 9 was
issued in July 2014 mainly to include a)impairment requirements for financial assets and b) limited amendments to the classification and
measurement requirements by introducing a “fair value through other comprehensive income” (FVTOCI) measurement category for certain
simple debt instruments.
Key requirements of IFRS 9:
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New Standards and Interpretations (continued)

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are required to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the outstanding
principal are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent reporting periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on outstanding principal,
are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity investments are measured at fair value at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In
addition, under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss. With regard to
the measurement of financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the fair
value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability is presented in other comprehensive income, unless
the recognition of the effect of the changes of the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in fair value of a financial liability designated as at fair value through
profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.
In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss model
under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit
losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. It is therefore no longer necessary for a credit event
to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.
The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms currently available in IAS 39.
Under IFRS 9, greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the
types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk components of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has been replaced with the principal of an “economic relationship”. Retrospective assessment
of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk management activities have also
been introduced.
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2018.
The company expects to adopt the standard for the first time in the 2019 financial statements.
It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on the company’s financial statements.
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 Construction contracts; IAS 18 Revenue; IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes; IFRIC 15 Agreements for the
construction of Real Estate; IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers and SIC 31 Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising
Services.
The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity recognises revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. An entity recognises
revenue in accordance with that core principle by applying the following steps:
Identify the contract(s) with a customer
Identify the performance obligations in the contract
Determine the transaction price
Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation. IFRS 15 also includes extensive new disclosure requirements.
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2018.
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Figures in Rand
3.

Figures in Rand

Property, plant and equipment
2017

Cost Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation

Total

Cost Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation

201 328
180 045
282 236
514 819
129 950

(47 624)
(142 163)
(264 607)
(455 160)
(21 575)

153 704
37 882
17 629
59 659
108 375

835 247
300 507
350 276
672 218
38 143
80 000

(250 714)
(197 962)
(333 442)
(593 900)
(14 555)
(73 293)

584 533
102 545
16 834
78 318
23 588
6 707

1 308 378

(931 129)

377 249

2 276 391

(1 463 866)

812 525

2017

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment 2016 - 2017

Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment
IT equipment
Security equipment
Finance lease asset

Opening
balance
135 305
142 401
18 643
71 521
11 294
22 707

Additions

Disposals Depreciation

Total

644 422
14 815
95 242
104 898
22 713
-

(872)
-

(195 194)
(54 671)
(97 051)
(97 229)
(10 419)
(16 000)

584 533
102 545
16 834
78 318
23 588
6 707

401 871

882 090

(872)

(470 564)

812 525

108 375

6 707

763 547

954 706

Property, plant and equipment encumbered as
security

Reconciliation of property, plant
and equipment - 2017 - 2018

Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment
IT equipment
Security equipment
Finance lease asset

2018

3.Property, plant and equipment (continued)
2018

Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment
IT equipment
Security equipment
Finance lease asset

Notes

Opening
balance
584 533
102 545
16 834
78 318
23 588
6 707

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

Total

174 649
6 298
17 026
49 277
129 950

(319 121)
(22 116)
(29 693)
(11 302)
(4 033)

(286 357)
(48 845)
(16 231)
(38 243)
(12 286)
(24 249)

153 704
37 882
17 629
59 659
108 375

812 525

377 200

(386 265)

(426 211)

377 249

94

The following assets have been encumbered as
security for the secured long-term borrowings 11:
Finance lease asset - copier machine
Other information
Fully depreciated property, plant and equipment still in
use
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Figures in Rand

2018

2017

4.Intangible assets

5.
2018

82 089

(35 980)

46 109

CostAccumulated Carrying value
amortisation
190 138

(142 803)

2018

2017

Deferred tax

Deferred tax asset/(liability)

2017

Cost Accumulated Carrying value
amortisation
Computer software and license
fees

Figures in Rand

47 335

Net deferred tax asset/(liability)

307 245

(5 241)

The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liability relate to income tax in the same jurisdiction, and the law allows net settlement. Therefore,
they have been offset in the statement of financial position as follows:
Net deferred tax liability

307 245

(5 241)

(5 241)
(206 837)
(40 252)

(21 538)
-

(2 951)
63 448
36 495
(1 391)
28 183
(14 438)
450 229

16 297
-

307 245

(5 241)

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2017 - 2018
Opening
balance
Computer software and licence
fees

47 335

Additions

Disposal Amortisation Amortisation
reversal on
disposal
(197 258)
197 258
(90 435)

89 209

Total
46 109

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2016 - 2017
Opening
balance
Computer software and licence
fees

101 926

Additions

Disposals Amortisation Amortisation
reversal on
disposal
(339 574)
339 574
(120 605)

66 014

Total
47 335

Reconciliation of deferred tax asset / (liability)
At beginning of year
Decrease in tax loss available for set off against future taxable income
Taxable / (deductible) temporary difference movement on property, plant and
equipment
Taxable / (deductible) temporary difference movement on leave pay accrual
Taxable / (deductible) temporary difference movement on bonus accrual
Taxable / (deductible) temporary difference movement on allowance for credit losses
Taxable / (deductible) temporary difference on operating lease liability
Taxable / (deductible) temporary difference movement on finance lease liability
Taxable / (deductible) temporary difference movement on prepaid expenses
Recognition of prior year unrecognised deferred tax asset

Recognition of deferred tax asset
An entity shall disclose the amount of a deferred tax asset and the nature of the evidence supporting its recognition, when:
the utilisation of the deferred tax asset is dependent on future taxable profits in excess of the profits arising from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences; and
the entity has suffered a loss in either the current or preceding period in the tax jurisdiction to which the deferred tax asset relates.
In the prior and current year the company has realised a profit and the budget for the following financial year indicates the expectation of
realising a profit, therefor the company is anticipating to utilise the deferred tax asset in the near future.
6.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
Prepayments
Deposits
Other receivable

96
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380 642
70 282
37 153
142 099

724 985
18 718
29 886
81 496

630 176

855 085
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2018

2017

Figures in Rand

2017

8. Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables (continued) Credit quality of trade and other receivables

The credit quality of trade and other receivables that are neither past nor due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit
ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rates:

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Trade receivables

Cash on hand
Operational bank balances
Short-term deposits
Project bank balances

Counterparties without external credit rating
B Rating
C Rating

2018

165 108
215 534

707 568
17 417

380 642

724 985

C Rating - Fair trade risk.

4 843
289 412
4 537 850
8 786 873

12 615 873

13 618 978

1 000

1 000

100

100

9. Share capital
Authorised
1000 Ordinary shares of R1 each

B Rating - Good behaviour, low risk

2 966
806 060
9 602 148
2 204 699

The credit rating is based on internal classifications and the process takes into account the number of days the debt is outstanding and the
payment history of the client. It is AIDC`s mandate to engage with BBBEE and SMME companies, and therefore an element of poor trade risk
will be present.

Issued
Ordinary

Trade and other receivables impaired

The company’s shareholder is Eastern Cape Development Corporation (“ECDC”) which holds 100% (2017: 100%) of the company’s equity.

As of 31 March 2018, trade and other receivables of R 189 065 (2017: R 15 278) were provided for.

10. Loan from shareholder

The ageing of these trade receivables is as follows:

Eastern Cape Development Corporation

3 to 6 months

189 065

15 278

(15 278)
(722 816)
549 029

(50 000)
(476 457)
511 179

(189 065)

(15 278)

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
Opening balance
Provision for impairment
Provision for impairment reversal

7.

Loans to incubatees

Loans and receivables
Loan to Incubatee 1
Loan to Incubatee 3
Loan to Incubatee 3
Loan to Incubatee 4
Loan to Incubatee 5
Loan to Incubatee 6

10 935
93 285
10 000

28 738
18 035
52 223
70 000
-

114 220

168 996

Current assets
114 220

Loans and receivables

168 997

As part of the Jobs fund BCM incubator project each incubator could take a loan to assist with start up costs of each business. A loan
agreement has been signed and the loans are repayable monthly in arrears. These are interest free loans. The loans are repayable within the
next twelve months.

98

(2 000 000)

(2 000 000)

31 188
98 896

11 512
-

less: future finance charges

130 084
(18 565)

11 512
(648)

Present value of minimum lease payments

111 519

10 864

87 842
23 677

10 864

111 519

10 864

The loan has no specified repayment dates and is interest free. Accordingly the fair
value of the loan cannot be reliably determined. The loan is subject to a subordination
agreement in favour of other creditors, until such time as the assets of the company,
fairly valued, exceeds its liabilities, fairly valued.
11. Finance lease liabilities
Minimum lease payments due
- within one year
- in second to fifth year inclusive

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

The lease term for copier 1 started 1 September 2012 and the final installment was payable on 31 August 2017. The finance lease was
replaced with a new agreement in June 2017. The lease term for copier 2 started 1 June 2017 and will end 31 May 2022. Installments of
R2599 are payable monthly in arrears.
The average effective borrowing rate was 6% (2017: 19%)
Interest rates are fixed at the contract date and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rent.
The company’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets. Refer note 3.

99

AIDC DEVELOPMENT CENTRE EASTERN CAPE (SOC) LTD

AIDC DEVELOPMENT CENTRE EASTERN CAPE (SOC) LTD

(Registration number 2003/018741/30)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

(Registration number 2003/018741/30)
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

Notes to the Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements

Figures in Rand

2018

2017

12. Operating lease liability
(6 114)
(12 873)

Deferred Government Grant - 2017

Opening
balance

Asset
acquisition

Asset
disposal

Depreciation

Total

(14 023)

(18 987)

Movement in Non-Current Asset book

379 163

882 090

(872)

(454 563)

805 818

Subtotal

379 163

882 090

(872)

(454 563)

805 818

379 163

882 090

(872)

(454 563)

805 818

16 900
208 597
193 765
844 177
192 311
79 069

104 420
208 547
157 307
204 304
617 578
180 506
349 318

1 534 819

1 821 980

Government grants are recognised in the annual financial statements to the extent that it has been expensed in terms of the agreement. The
unutilised government grant is received to cover operating expenses and is carried forward to the 2019 financial year. The majority of the
unspent grant will be utilised during the 2019 financial year to cover the expected cost of moving premises.
268 873
9 619 374

805 818
11 995 635

9 888 247

12 801 453

Opening Received
Applied to
Utilised
Balance during the acquire fixed during the
year
assets
year
2 762 867 10 892 105
(47 067)
(6 300 557)
5 855 761
(4 341 297)
86 970
3 978 975
(4 065 945)

Total

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

The unutilised grant amounts are cash backed by bank balances and short term deposits as per note 8.

Subtotal

Unutilised Government Grant - 2017

325 487
1 009 694
1 954 860

(50 046)
(50 046)
(100 092)

(275 441)
(959 648)
(1 413 751)

797 562

11 995 639 15 227 625

(247 251)

(17 356 639)

9 619 374

11 995 639 15 227 625

(247 251)

(17 356 639)

9 619 374

Received
during the
year

Applied to
acquire fixed
assets

Utilised
during the
year

Total

10 179 825
-

(107 629)
(3 864)

(7 406 260)
(599 499)

2 762 867
5 855 761

VAT refund on previous receipts of grant funding
Grant received from Jobs Fund National Treasury (PRIME)
Grant received from ECDC (BCM)
Grant received from BCM

1 753 667
929 564
1 754 259

2 444 000
140 488
-

(3 864)
(194 517)
(194 517)

(1 753 667)
(2 353 166)
(550 048)
(550 048)

86 970
325 487
1 009 694

Grant received from Jobs Fund National Treasury (BCM)

1 517 991

1 926 000

(377 699)

(1 111 432)

1 954 860

12 511 536

14 690 313

(882 090) (14 324 120) 11 995 639

12 511 536

14 690 313

(882 090) (14 324 120) 11 995 639

Deferred Government Grant - 2018

Opening
balance

Asset
acquisition

Movement in Non-Current Asset book

805 818

247 251

(382 232)

(401 964)

268 873

Subtotal

805 818

247 251

(382 232)

(401 964)

268 873

805 818

247 251

(382 232)

(401 964)

268 873

100

Amounts
received in
advance
Cluster funds received
Cluster funds disbursed
Management fee recognised in revenue

Total

1 300 000
(300 000)
(150 000)

1 300000
(300000)
(150000)

850 000

850000

During the 2018 financial year the AIDC was requested by it`s shareholder to play an oversight role over the Eastern Cape Tooling Initiative, the
Non Automotive Manufacturing and Eastern Cape Automotive Initiative Clusters. This includes being responsible for the disbursement of funds to
the clusters when the agreed upon key perfomance indicators are met. The AIDC receives a management fee for the oversight role performed.
16. Financial instruments by category

96 931
6 459 124

Asset Depreciation
disposal

Trade payables
Amounts received in advance
VAT
Accrued leave pay
Accrued bonus
Payroll accruals
Other accrued expenses

15. Cluster amounts received in advance

356 545

Opening
Balance

14. Trade and other payables

7 307 348
1 514 464
-

Grant received from ECDC
Grant received from ECDC (PRIME)

Subtotal

2017

(2 805)
(11 218)

13. Deferred income

Grant received from ECDC
Grant received from ECDC (PRIME)
Grant received from Jobs Fund National Treasury
(PRIME)
Grant received from ECDC (BCM)
Grant received from BCM
Grant received from Jobs Fund National Treasury
(BCM)

2018

13. Deferred income (continued)

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Unutilised Government Grant - 2018

Figures in Rand

Total

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:
2017 - 2018
Loans and
receivables
Trade receivables
Deposits
Other receivables
Loans to incubatees
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade payables
Finance lease liabilities
Operating lease liabilities
Cluster funds received in advance

380 642
37 153
142 099
114 220
12 615 873
13 289 987

101

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost

Total

(16 901)
(111 519)
(14 023)
(850 000)

380 642
37 153
142 099
114 220
12 615 873
(16 901)
(111 519)
(14 023)
(850 000)

(992 443)

12 297 544
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2018

2017

Figures in Rand

16. Financial instruments by category (continued)

19. Operating profit (loss) (continued) Leases

2016 - 2017

Operating lease charges
Premises
Equipment

Loans and
receivables
Trade receivables
Deposits
Other receivables
Loans to incubatees
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade payables
Finance lease liabilities
Operating lease liabilities
Amounts received in advance

724 985
29 886
81 496
168 997
13 618 978
14 624 342

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost

Total

(104 420)
(10 864)
(18 987)
(208 547)

724 985
29 886
81 496
168 997
13 618 978
(104 420)
(10 864)
(18 987)
(208 547)

(342 818)

14 281 524

17. Project expenses

2018

2017

698 988
9 380

971 199
32 903

708 368

1 004 102

Total operating lease charges
Less: Operating lease charges included in cost of services rendered

708 368
(9 380)

1 004 102
(368 805)

Total operating lease charges expensed

698 988

635 297

Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

426 211
90 435

470 563
120 605

Total depreciation and amortisation

516 646

591 168

790 435

674 855

20. Investment income

Rendering of services:
Travelling and accommodation
Employee costs
Other operating expenses

594 015
1 190 391
623 259

575 147
2 200 737
1 704 512

Interest income

2 407 665

4 480 396

21. Finance costs

Bank and other cash

Finance leases
18. Other income
Other income
Government grant utilised for Jobs fund projects
Government grant utilised for operational expenses

28 139
11 715 944
6 424 886

7 232 644
7 546 713

18 168 969

14 779 357

7 974

5 858

22. Taxation
Major components of the tax expense (income)
Current
Local income tax - current period

12 165

-

19. Operating profit (loss)

Deferred

(312 486)

(16 297)

Operating loss for the year is stated after charging (crediting) the following, amongst others:

Originating and reversing temporary differences

(300 321)

(16 297)

Accounting profit

535 386

529 165

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 28% (2017: 28%)

149 908

148 166

(450 229)

-

-

(164 463)

(300 321)

(16 297)

Auditor’s remuneration - external
Audit fees

120 590

114 434

Remuneration, other than to employees
Professional services - legal, software experts

110 189

135 161

Reconciliation of the tax expense
Reconciliation between accounting profit and tax expense.

Employee costs
Salaries, wages, bonuses and other benefits

15 133 772

14 363 955

Total employee costs
Less: Employee costs included in cost of services rendered

15 133 772
(1 190 391)

14 363 955
(2 200 737)

Total employee costs expensed

13 943 381

12 163 218

102

Tax effect of adjustments on taxable income
Arising from previously deferred tax asset
Unrecognised deferred tax asset utilised
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Figures in Rand

2018

2017

Figures in Rand

2018

2017

26. Related parties

23. Cash generated from operations
(Loss) profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Losses (gains) on disposals, scrappings and settlements of assets and liabilities
Interest income
Finance costs
Impairment losses and reversals
Movements in operating lease assets and accruals
Movements in grants received for operations
Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables
Cluster funds received in advance

535 386

529 165

516 646
359 592
(790 435)
7 974
243 889
(4 964)
3 807 359

591 168
(10 294)
(674 855)
5 858
(34 722)
(63 831)
2 318 334

51 122
(287 166)
850 000

1 253 340
687 959
-

5 289 403

4 602 122

Relationships
Shareholder
Members of key management

Eastern Cape Development Corporation (“ECDC”)
Arnelle Heynes
Lana Jansen van Rensburg
Yogavelli Naidoo

Related party balances
Loan accounts - Owing (to) by related parties
Eastern Cape Development Corporation
Amounts included in Trade receivable (Trade Payable) regarding related parties
Eastern Cape Development Corporation

Balance at beginning of the year
Current tax for the year recognised in profit or loss
Balance at end of the year

-

84 672

(12 165)

-

12 165

-

-

84 672

Rent and utilities paid to related parties
Eastern Cape Development Corporation
Government grants received from related parties
Eastern Cape Development Corporation

Operating leases – as lessee (expense)

Compensation to directors and other key management
Directors fees

Minimum lease payments due
- within one year
- in second to fifth year inclusive

771 517
181 106

218 244
76 888

952 623

295 132

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the company for its Newton Park office premises. The lease runs for a period of two
years, commencing 1 June 2017 and terminating on 31 May 2019, with an option to renew the lease. Lease payments are increased by
5% every year. Notice to cancel the current lease by December 2018 has been given to the landlord on 1 June 2018. No contingent rent is
payable.
During 2018 financial year the company entered into a new lease agreement for the BCM incubator project. The lease runs for a period of one
year, commencing on 1 October 2017 and terminating on 30 September 2018. No escalation and no contingent rent is payable.
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-

156 405

-

(1 024 991)

153 401

108 348

(10 892 105) (10 179 825)

Compensation paid to key management
Basic salary
Bonus and performance related payment
Expenses and other allowances

25. Commitments

(2 000 000)

Related party transactions
Services rendered to related parties
Eastern Cape Development Corporation

24. Tax refunded

(2 000 000)
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1 550 728
142 005
33 456

1 461 780
121 717
25 143

232 645

35 928
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Figures in Rand

2018

2017

Figures in Rand

2018

2017

27. Directors’ emoluments

28. Risk management (continued) Liquidity risk

Executive

The company’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments as they fall due. The company manages liquidity
risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and by maintaining sufficient cash as far as possible.

2018

Hoosain Mahomed (CEO)

Interest rate risk
Salary Expenses and Company
Performance
other
contributions
bonus
allowances
1 065 547
18 529
41 841
182 924

Total
1 308 841

Credit risk
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors. The company only deposits
cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

2017

Hoosain Mahomed (CEO)

As the company has no significant interest-bearing assets, the company’s income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates.

Salary Expenses and Company
Performance
other
contributions
bonus
allowances
971 772
23 997
58 108
83 635

Total
1 137 512

Non-executive

Trade and other receivables:
The company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other receivables
and investments. The main components of this allowance are a specific loss component that relates to individually significant exposures, and
a collective loss component established for groups of similar assets in respect of losses that have been incurred but not yet identified. The
collective loss allowance is determined based on historical data of payment statistics for similar financial assets.
Deposits:

2018
Directors’ fees Expenses and
other
allowances
46 940
1 208
27 500
64 525
49 688
34 375
8 409

Dino Petrarolo (Chairperson to 06/04/18)
Welile Moss (Chairperson from 06/04/18)
Ian Whittal
Tracey Mouton
Zamela Kiviet

223 028

9 617

Total

The company limits it`s exposure to credit risk by only investing in liquid securities. Management does not expect any counterparty to fail to
meet it`s obligations.
29. Going concern

48 148
27 500
64 525
49 688
42 784
232 645

We draw attention to the fact that at 31 March 2018, the company had accumulated losses of R (320 001) and that the company’s total
liabilities exceed its assets by R (319 901).
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis presumes that
funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and
commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.
The ability of the company to continue as a going concern is however highly dependant on receiving MTEF funding for the 2018-19 financial
year from it`s shareholder, ECDC. A three year budget allocation letter has been received with confirmed funding for operations of R15,2
million, R16 million and R17,3 million for the 2018-19 up to and including the 2020-21 financial year.

2017
Directors’ fees Expenses and
other
allowances
15 284
644
20 000
-

Dino Petrarolo (Chairperson)
Ian Whittal

35 284

644

Total
15 928
20 000
35 928

The ability of the company to continue as a going concern is dependent on a number of factors. The most significant of these is that the
directors continue to procure funding for the ongoing operations for the company and that the subordination agreement referred to in note
10 of these financial statements will remain in force for so long as it takes to restore the solvency of the company.
30. Events after the reporting period
The directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the financial year that has a material impact on the
financial statements.

28. Risk management

31. Fruitless and wasteful expenses

Financial risk management
The company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

In terms of sec 55(2) of the PFMA, the company must disclose any fruitless and wasteful expenses.
No fruitless and wasteful expenses were incurred during the 2018 and 2017 financial years.

The Board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the company`s risk management framework. the Board
has established the Audit and Risk Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the company`s risk management policies.
The committee reports regularly to the Board of directors on its activities. The risk management policies are established to identify and analyse
risks faced by the company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls. and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies
and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the company`s activities.
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Notes

Revenue
Rendering of services
Project expenses
Cost of rendering services

2018

2017

3 965 009

5 645 877

(2 407 665) (4 480 396)

Gross profit
Other operating income
Insurance proceeds
Jobs Fund Government grant income
ECDC Government grant income
18

Other operating gains (losses)
(Losses) gains on disposal of assets or settlement of liabilities

1 557 344

1 165 481

28 139
11 715 944
6 424 886

7 232 644
7 546 713

18 168 969

14 779 357

(359 592)

10 294

(19 613 796) (16 094 964)

Expenses (Refer to page 45)
19
20
21

Operating loss
Investment income
Finance costs
Profit (loss) before taxation

22

Taxation
Profit (loss) for the year
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(247 075)
790 435
(7 974)

(139 832)
674 855
(5 858)

535 386

529 165

300 321

16 297

835 707

545 462

Figures in Rand

Note(s)

Other operating expenses
Advertising
Amortisation
Auditors remuneration - external auditors
Bank charges
Board of directors and audit committee remuneration
Change in allowance for impairment of trade and other receivables
Computer expenses
Conference fees
Consumables
Depreciation
Employee costs
Entertainment
Gifts
IT expenses
Impairment
Insurance
Lease rentals on operating lease
Municipal expenses
Placement fees
Postage
Printing and stationery
Professional fees - legal fees
Professional fees- software experts
Repairs and maintenance
Security
Staff welfare
Subscriptions
Telephone and fax
Training
Travel - local
Travel - overseas
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19

2018

2017

210 600
90 435
120 590
60 639
180 369
173 787
3 896
18 062
21 057
426 211
13 943 381
9 610
306
184 632
70 102
52 964
698 988
133 798
4 831
52 123
27 552
82 637
380
15 600
62 850
12 986
303 274
2 560 353
91 783
-

215 608
120 605
114 434
61 272
90 534
(34 722)
63 915
71 054
20 639
470 563
12 163 218
9 061
3 531
142 600
82 185
635 297
114 612
13 292
4 232
96 859
28 788
106 373
18 786
15 600
63 800
16 939
195 106
895 252
248 337
47 194

19 613 796

16 094 964

NOTES

NOTES
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